# CHILDREN UNDER PERSECUTION

### A Report on Children Suffering from the Persecution against Falun Gong in China



October 26, 2004

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

http://globalrescue.net 5 Henshaw Terrace, West Roxbury, MA 02132, U.S.A

1-617-217-8952 (ph); 1-707-281-2737 (efax), info@globalrescue.net

### **Table of Contents**

INTRODUCTION1					
CHA	CHAPTER ONE • CASES OF CHILDREN PERSECUTED TO DEATH				
1)	CHEN YING, A 17-YEAR-OLD HIGH SCHOOL STUDENT FROM HEILONGJIANG PROVINCE, JUMPED TO HER DEATH	4			
2)	LIU QIAN, A 12-YEAR-OLD GIRL, WAS PERSECUTED AND DIED				
3)	GAO JINGYU, AN 8-YEAR OLD GIRL, DIED AFTER MISTREATMENT IN BEIJING				
4)	Meng Hao, an 8-month-old baby, was tortured to death along with mother Wang Lixuan	6			
5)	WANG SHUJIE, A 4-YEAR-OLD GIRL FROM SHANDONG PROVINCE, DIED AS A RESULT OF THE PERSECUTION	6			
	PTER TWO • CASES OF ORPHANS AND SEMI-ORPHANS WHOSE				
PARI	ENT(S) PERSECUTED TO DEATH	8			
1)	RONGRONG, A 4-YEAR-OLD GIRL, HAS EXPERIENCED SEVERAL SEPARATIONS FROM HER PARENTS				
2)	FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER WU LINGXIA TORTURED TO DEATH, AND LEFT BEHIND A TEENAGE SON	8			
3)	FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER MS. CUI ZHENGSHU DIED FROM TORTURE, AND LEFT BEHIND A 9-YEAR OLD SON.	9			
4)	FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER ZHANG ZHUO TORTURED TO DEATH, AND LEFT BEHIND A 6-YEAR-OLD BOY				
5)	WU QINGBIN'S 12-YEAR-OLD SON BECAME AN ORPHAN DUE TO WU'S DEATH OF TORTURE				
6)	FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER DAI XIANGGUANG DIED, AND LEFT HIS DAUGHTER A SEMI-ORPHAN				
7)	FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER CUI GUOQING TORTURED TO DEATH, AND DAUGHTER BECAME A SEMI-ORPHAN	11			
8)	FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER ZHAO XUDONG DIED, HIS 8-YEAR-OLD DAUGHTER BECAME A SEMI-ORPHAN	11			
9)	FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER ZHAN JINYAN DIED, HER 2- YEAR-OLD SON BECAME A SEMI-ORPHAN	12			
10)	FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER HAO RUNJUAN TORTURED TO DEATH AND 2- YEAR-OLD SON LOST MOTHER				
11)	FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER CHEN CHENGYONG DIED, HIS 4-YEAR-OLD DAUGHTER MISSES HER DAD				
12)	FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER MR. HE HUAJIANG TORTURED TO DEATH AND LEFT SON AS AN ORPHAN				
13)	FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER MR. YANG YI DIED, SCHOOL-AGED CHILD LOST HIS FATHER	13			
14)	FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER MS. TANG YUN TORTURED TO DEATH , 2-YEAR-OLD SON BECAME AN ORPHAN	14			
15)	FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER PENG CHUNRONG DIED, 8-YEAR-OLD CHILD BECAME AN ORPHAN				
16)	FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER CHAI YONG DIES AS A RESULT OF TORTURE, LEAVING INFANT BEHIND				
17)	FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER TIAN SHIQIANG DIED, LEFT HIS 2-YEAR-OLD CHILD BEHIND	15			
18)	12-YEAR-OLD DAUGHTER WITNESSED MOTHER SU QIONGHUA BEING MURDERED				
19)	FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER TANG FAFEN DIED, LEFT HER 9-YEAR-OLD SON BEHIND				
20)	FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER XU ZHILIAN JUMPED TO HER DEATH, LEFT 5-YEAR-OLD CHILD BEHIND	16			
21)	FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER TANG JIANPING DIED, LEFT HIS WIFE AND 3-YEAR-OLD SON BEHIND				
22)	FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER LU XINGGUO KILLED BY POLICE, LEFT SCHOOL AGE DAUGHTER BEHIND	17			
23)	SIXTEEN-YEAR-OLD GIRL LOST HER MOTHER, AND FACING THE POSSIBILITY OF DROPPING OFF THE SCHOOL	17			
24)	FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER ZHAO DONGMEI TORTURED TO DEATH; YOUNG DAUGHTER MOTHERLESS	18			
25)	FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER XIAO PEIFENG DIED, WIFE AND TWO SCHOOL AGE KIDS LIVE A HARD LIFE	18			
26)	FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER MOU NAIWU KILLED, LEFT WIFE AND DAUGHTER BEHIND				
27)	FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER LI GUOJUN DIED, 12-YEAR-OLD SON BECAME AN ORPHA				
28)	FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER LIU SHUCHUN BEATEN TO DEATH, LEFT 7-YEAR-OLD DAUGHTER BEHIND				
29)	2-YEAR-OLD AND 13-YEAR-OLD DAUGHTERS LEFT WITHOUT A MOM				
30)	FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER JIANG CHUNXIAN DIED, SURVIVED BY A DAUGHTER QU YANRU				
31)	6-YEAR-OLD CHI YUJING LIVES WITH GRANDMOTHER AND GREAT-GRANDMOTHER				
32)	3-YEAR-OLD HUANG YIN'S MOTHER DIED FROM PERSECUTION AND FATHER LEFT CHINA	21			
33)	6-YEAR-OLD HUANG XINYU ORPHANED FROM PERSECUTION AND LIVING WITH GRANDPARENTS	22			
34)	THE INFORMATION OF THE ORPHANS AFTER THE TORTURE TO DEATH OF PRACTITIONER LUO KAIJUN				
35)	2-YEAR OLD ORPHAN WANG TIANXIN WAS LEFT BEHIND AFTER BOTH HIS MOTHER AND UNCLE DIED				
36)	THE CHILDREN OF FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER SONG HUAPING WHO WAS TORTURED TO DEATH				
37)	FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER ZANG DIANLONG DIED, LEFT TWO SCHOOL-AGE SONS BEHIND				
38)	FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER SU BAOLAN TORTURED TO DEATH, LEFT A 16 YEAR-OLD SON AS AN ORPHAN				
39)	FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER TAN CHENGQIANG DIED, SONS AND DAUGHTER BECAME ORPHANS				
40)	LI JINGDONG, THE FATHER OF LI LINGHONG AND LI XINGGANG WAS TORTURED TO DEATH	26			

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会

**Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners** 

i

#### Falun Gong Persecution Report

41)	FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER LI SHUHUA'S TWO ORPHANS YANG KAI AND YANG HANG	27
42)	Liu Xinyu and Liu Minghui, the two orphans of Falun Gong practitioner Liu Dejun	27
43)	DEATH OF FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER MR. LI ZAIJI LEFT HIS SON LI XIN IN DIRE CIRCUMSTANCES	
44)	DU JUAN, THE ORPHAN OF FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER LIANG SUYUN	
45)	4-YEAR-OLD LITTLE GIRL WAN RUYI'S FATHER WAS PERSECUTED TO DEATH	
46)	WANG BORU, SON OF FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER WANG HONGBIN WHO DIED FROM TORTURE	
40)	FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER WANG HUAZHEN BURNED TO DEATH, LEFT TWO LITTLE SONS MOTHERLESS	
48)	5-YEAR-OLD GIRL ORPHANED WHEN MOTHER ZHAO SHUHONG DIED FROM PERSECUTION OF FALUN GONG	
40)	S-TEAR-OLD GIRL ORTHANED WHEN MOTHER ZHAO SHUHONG DIED FROM PERSECUTION OF FALUN GONG FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER ZHANG HAIYAN DIED, HER SEMI-ORPHANED SON QUIT SCHOOL	
49) 50)	FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER ZHANG HAITAN DIED, HER SEMI-OKPHANED SON QUIT SCHOOL FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER ZHANG ZHIBIN MURDERED, LEFT BEHIND TEENAGER DAUGHTER AND SON	
,	FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER ZHANG ZHIBIN MURDERED, LEFT BEHIND TEENAGER DAUGHTER AND SON FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER XUAN HONGGUI DIED, LEFT DAUGHTER ZHAO LIN BEHIND	
51) 52)	FALUN GONG PRACIITIONER AUAN HONGGUI DIED, LEFT DAUGHTER ZHAO LIN BEHIND I HAVE LOST MY MOMMY, I CANNOT LOSE MY DADDY	
52) 53)	14-year-old girl Sun Yubo is orphaned after her parents were killed	
53) 54)	FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER LIU LIYUN DIED, AND LEFT BEHIND 21 YEAR-OLD JUNIOR HU YANG	
54) 55)	FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER LIU LIYUN DIED, AND LEFT BEHIND 21 YEAR-OLD JUNIOR HU YANG FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER MS. LI JIJU WAS TORTURED TO DEATH, SURVIVED HER SON ZHU LI	
55) 56)	FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER MIS. LI JIJU WAS TORTURED TO DEATH, SURVIVED HER SON ZHU LI TIAN GE, DAUGHTER OF TIAN YILI AND ZHEN YUJIE, ORPHANED DUE TO THE PERSECUTION	
56) 57)	Current Status of Falun Gong Practitioner Zhang Qifa's Surviving Daughter Zhang Qi	
57)		
58) 50)	12-YEAR-OLD CHILD'S MOTHER DIED, FATHER SENTENCED TO FOUR YEARS IN PRISON	
59)	FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER ZUO SHUCHUN DIED, AND HER SON DONG WEI WAS ORPHANED Orphaned teen became a fugitive as parents died from torture	
60)	ORPHANED TEEN BECAME A FUGTIVE AS PARENTS DIED FROM TORTURE	38
СНАГ	PTER THREE • CASES OF CHILDREN BEING PERSECUTED FOR	
		4.0
PRAC	CTICING FALUN GONG	40
1)	WANG ZHE IS EXPELLED FOR EXPOSING THE PERSECUTION OF FALUN GONG	40
2)	AI DAN IS DEPRIVED OF HER EDUCATION FOR PROMOTING "TRUTHFULNESS-COMPASSION-TOLERANCE"	<del>1</del> 0 //1
3)	ZHANG CONGHUI, HIGH SCHOOL STUDENT WAS EXPELLED AND JAILED	
3) 4)	WANG LIN WAS ARRESTED FOR ANSWERING AN EXAM QUESTION TRUTHFULLY	
5)	HUANG JING WAS ARRESTED FOR ANSWERING AN EAAM QUESTION TRUTHFULLT	
5) 6)	CHEN SI, A 13-YEAR-OLD GIRL, WAS ARRESTED AND TORTURED	
0) 7)	A 16-YEAR OLD MINOR WAS FACED BRUTAL TORTURE	
8)	A 10-YEAR OLD MINOR WAS FACED BRUTAL FORTURE A 15-YEAR OLD MINOR WAS TORTURED AND HER FAMILY HEAVILY FINED	
9)	Two 17-year-old high school students were forced to leave school and home	
10)	ENDURING ALL KINDS OF BRUTAL TORTURES, I STILL DIDN'T WRITE A SINGLE WORD AGAINST FALUN GONG	
10)	15-year-old Han Tianzi suffered electric baton shock	
12)	A YOUNG GIRL WAS ILLEGALLY DETAINED AND WENT ON PROLONGED HUNGER STRIKE	
12)	LI MINGWEI WAS PERSECUTED FOR HIS BELIEF IN FALUN GONG	
13)	LIU WENWEN AND LIU LULU, TEENAGE GIRLS, WERE TORTURED IN HEIZUIZI LABOR CAMP	
15)	A YOUNG STUDENT CAN NOT ATTEND SCHOOL BECAUSE OF THE PERSECUTION	
16)	A 10-NG STODEM CAN NOT ATTEND SCHOOL BECAUSE OF THE PERSECUTION	
10)	JUNJUN, 10-YEAR-OLD, IS KIDNAPPED BY THE PUBLIC SECURITY DEPARTMENT	
18)	10-year-old Falun Gong practitioner Zhouzhou was arrested, hung by his hands and beaten	
10)	A NINE-MONTH-OLD BABY'S BITTER EXPERIENCES	
20)	A NINE-MONTHOLD BABT 3 BIT TER EAT ENTENCES. AN OUTSTANDING HIGH SCHOOL STUDENT WAS DEPRIVED HIS RIGHT TO EDUCATION DUE TO HIS BELIEF	
20)	A 16-YEAR-OLD GIRL WAS ILLEGALLY DETAINED FOR HER BELIEF IN FALUN GONG	
21)	A BRIGHT YOUNG GIRL WAS PERSECUTED BECAUSE OF HER BELIEF IN FALUN GONG	
22)	Sichuan young practitioner stated her sufferings: illegal detainment for 1 year	
23)	A 16-YEAR-OLD GIRL FROM HEBEI PROVINCE WAS SUBJECTED TO HORRIFIC TORTURE	
25)	AN HONOR STUDENT WAS BARRED FROM HIGH SCHOOL	
26)	A TEENAGER GIRL WAS PERSECUTED FOR HER BELIEF IN FALUN GONG	
20)	AN 11-YEAR-OLD GIRL WAS PERSECUTED FOR PRACTICING FALUN GONG	
28)	HIGH SCHOOL GIRL WAS PERSECUTED FOR HER BELIEF IN FALUN GONG	
20) 29)	A 2-YEAR-OLD BOY WAS DETAINED WITH MOM FOR 9 MONTHS	
<b>30</b> )	A 2-YEAR-OLD BOY WAS DETAINED WITH MOM FOR 9 MONTHS	
30) 31)	EXPERIENCES OF A 15-YEAR-OLD HIGH SCHOOL STUDENT SUFFERING FROM THE PERSECUTION	
31) 32)	EXPERIENCES OF A 15-YEAR-OLD HIGH SCHOOL STUDENT SUFFERING FROM THE PERSECUTION	
32) 33)	ORDEALS OF A SIXTEEN YEAR-OLD HIGH SCHOOL STUDENT.	
33) 34)	Police sent 6-month-old baby to Detention Center with his parents	
34) 35)	Who deprived little Hu Ming of his parents' care?	
33) 36)	SHIJIAZHUANG FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER BAI YUZHI'S TEENAGE SON WAS ARRESTED	
50)		01
	全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会	

#### **Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners**

ii

#### Falun Gong Persecution Report

37)	MOTHER KIDNAPPED BY POLICE, 12-YEAR-OLD DAUGHTER NOWHERE TO BE FOUND	61
38)	AN OUTSTANDING HIGH SCHOOL STUDENT WAS STRIPPED OF HIS RIGHT TO EDUCATION	62
39)	LITTLE SISTER AND BROTHER SUFFEREDFROM THE PERSECUTION	62
40)	LITTLE PRISONER IN THE MODERN SOCIETY	63
41)	A BABY GIRL WAS FORCED TO WANE DUE TO THE PERSECUTION OF HER MOTHER	63
42)	A FOURTEEN YEAR-OLD GIRL WAS FORCED TO STAY IN A NURSING HOME	63
CHAF	<b>PTER FOUR • CASES OF CHILDREN SEPARATED FROM PARENTS</b>	
WHO	PRACTICE FALUN GONG	64
1)	LIN HUIXUAN, A 5-YEAR-OLD GIRL, WAS FORCIBLY TAKEN AWAY FROM HER PARENTS	64
2)	ZHANG YUANYUAN, A 4-YEAR-OLD GIRL, WAS KIDNAPPED BY POLICE	65
3)	YANG XINYU & FANG NANJIE, CALL FOR RELEASE OF THEIR LOVED PARENTS	65
4)	HUHU, 4-YEAR-OLD BOY, LEFT ALONE AFTER HAPPY FAMILY TORN APART BY PERSECUTION	66
5)	BOTH PARENTS WEE SENTENCED TO FORCED LABOR, LEFT 3- YEAR-OLD YANG ZHENYU BEHIND	
6)	BOTH PARENTS ARE BEING HELD IN PRISON, YANG WENJING IS FACING THE PLIGHT OF LOSING RESIDENCE	67
7)	A HOMELESS CHILD WAS SENT TO ORPHANAGE AS HER MOTHER WAS TORTURED	68
8)	AN 18-YEAR-OLD BOY UNABLE TO FINISH HIGH SCHOOL AS HIS MOTHER IS IMPRISONED	68
9)	THE PERSECUTION OF YOUNG FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER LU XIN	69
10)	FALUN GONG PRACTITIONER MENG YUHUA JAILED, HER SON AND GRANDPARENTS LIVE A DIFFICULT LIFE	70
11)	GUOXING LIVES WITH 77 YEAR-OLD GRANDMOTHER AS HIS FATHER WAS ILLEGALLY DETAINED	70
12)	A MIDDLE SCHOOL STUDENT QIANQIAN AND HER OLD GRANDMOTHER ARE LEFT HOME WITHOUT HELP	71
13)	TRUE STORY OF A BABY LESS THAN ONE YEAR-OLD	
14)	A 9-YEAR-OLD BOY BECAME A HELPLESS ORPHAN AFTER FAN QIFAN WAS ARRESTED	72
15)	WITH MOTHER ILLEGALLY DETAINED, THREE CHILDREN LEFT LIVING A AIFFICULT LIFE	
16)	A CHINESE ORPHAN IN THE NEW CENTURY	
17)	FALUN GONG PRACTITIONERS GUO WEI AND HIS WIFE DETAINED, LEFT A HELPLESS 2-YEAR-OLD SON	74
18)	WITH BOTH PARENTS DETAINED, 14-YEAR-OLD ZHANG LU IS ADOPTED BY HER AUNT	74
19)	8-year-old Wang Juanjuan has to live with her 80 year-old grandmother	
20)	17-YEAR-OLD ZHANG TIEZHU SUPPORTS HIMSELF BY GROWING CROPS	75
21)	WEI WEI LIVES WITH HER GRANDMOTHER AS BOTH PARENTS WERE ARRESTED	75
22)	KANG JIAQI WAS DEPRIVED OF HER EDUCATION BECAUSE HER PARENTS PRACTICE FALUN DAFA	
SUMN	MARY	78

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

iii

### Introduction

The Children Under Persecution Report was compiled by *Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners* (GMRPFP). GMRPFP is an international non-profit human rights organization, which was established in November 2002 by several constituent groups from 16 countries. The core mission of GMRPFP is "to call for conscience and courage, raise public awareness about the persecution of Falun Gong practitioners in China, to rescue those being tortured in jails, forced-labor camps, mental hospitals and detention centers, and to initiate, coordinate, and support efforts of the international community to help end the genocide<sup>1</sup> against Falun Gong practitioners and the ethoscide<sup>2</sup> against all China and even the whole world as soon as possible."

In compiling these cases of children suffering persecution, our primary sources of information for this report were sent by eyewitnesses and victims inside China. We are indebted to the Falun Dafa Information Center and Clearwisdom.net, which have made incessant efforts to release reports on the crackdown against Falun Gong. We are also grateful for the generous support of the world's print and electronic media, as well as the efforts of U.S. and European governmental organizations, private individuals, the United Nations and other nongovernmental organizations helping to expose and publicize the plight of persecuted and murdered Falun Gong practitioners in China.

The crackdown on Falun Gong over the past five years in the People's Republic of China has led to the unjust imprisonment of thousands of innocent practitioners, has subjected them to severe forms of mental and physical abuse and caused their families and loved ones countless hours of emotional agony. Consequently, in the wake of this savagery, many children have become orphans or semi-orphans from the 1,068 and growing number of confirmed death cases of Falun Gong practitioners killed during the persecution. In addition, many children have been directly targeted and tortured to death or thrown into prisons and labor camps. Moreover, hundreds of thousands of children have been forced to slander Falun Gong or expelled from school if they refused to do so. These children are all targeted because of their belief in Falun Gong. Also, numerous children are victimized by being left unattended when their parents' are detained for practicing Falun Gong.

In fact, in the past 5 years, millions of Falun Gong practitioners have been locked up in brainwashing centers, "transformed," tortured and beaten, in order to force them to give up their belief in "Truth, Compassion and Tolerance." They have been forced to choose between a spiritual death and a physical death. All people of China have been pushed to relinquish their consciences to show their attitudes of support for this persecution. Even foreign governments and corporations have been cheated by the government-controlled propaganda and forced to choose between conscience and interests when facing the persecution.

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

1

We use the word "Ethoscide<sup>2</sup>" to describe one important aspect of the nature of this persecution. In this process, the children are the most victimized because their consciences and pure hearts have been damaged or warped by the brainwashing, and that will affect their long-term lives.

Due to the tight information blockage, what is reported here only represents the tip of an iceberg. The purpose of this report is to collect all the information that we can to reflect what has been happening to hundreds of thousands of innocent children in China. We hope, however, that this limited report will help to demonstrate the severe physical and mental pain suffered by countless children in China due to the cruel persecution of their own belief or their parents' belief in Falun Gong. We hope this report can help encourage the actual rescue effort to help these children and also provide testimony for the hand of justice in the near future.

For those whose liberty has been taken away, for those whose prison walls conceal their tears ... They are oppressed. Their young and weak voices are silenced, but ours are not.

Annotation:

<sup>1</sup>genocide: the conventional definition is as follows: any of the following acts committed with intent to destroy, in whole or in part, a national, ethnical, racial or religious group, as such:

- (a) Killing members of the group;
- (b) Causing serious bodily or mental harm to members of the group;
- (c) Deliberately inflicting on the group conditions of life calculated to bring about its physical destruction in whole or in part;
- (d) Imposing measures intended to prevent births within the group; (e) Forcibly transferring children of the group to another group.

For more information regarding genocide, please refer to Convention on the Prevention and **Punishment of Genocide** 

<sup>2</sup>*ethoscide:* We define as follows The intentional massive annihilation of the fundamental factors and values that constitute humanity. The breaking or destruction of spirit, will, dignity, or essential character. The forcible compromise of conscience or relinquishing of principles of justice. The basic methods utilized to commit this crime are massive "transformation" or "brainwashing," followed by massive torturing and killing when encountering noncooperation from those being persecuted.

We think genocide and ethoscide can describe the hideous nature of the persecution against Falun Gong. The campaign to annihilate Falun Gong practitioners permeates all levels of society and utilizes the entire government-what human rights lawyers are calling genocide. In addition, ethoscide is used more and more to describe another important aspect of the persecution: destroy practitioners' spirits and corrupt all people's consciences. Practitioners are forced to

#### 全球营救受迫害法轮功举员委员会 **Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners**

choose between a spiritual and physical death by either renouncing their belief or dying from torture. Not only China, but even foreign companies and governments have been forced to choose between conscience and self-interest when facing the persecution of Falun Gong. The way we look at it, on the level of conscience and spirit, this kind of choice is as serious as a choice of life and death. From this aspect, we say the broadness and evilness of this persecution is unprecedented in human history.

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

### **Chapter One**

#### **Cases of Children Persecuted to Death**

### 1) Chen Ying, a 17-year-old high school student from Heilongjiang province, jumped to her death



Chen Ying, female, 17 years old, was in the 10<sup>th</sup> grade at Shuren High School in Jiamusi City, Heilongjiang Province. On August 16, 1999, Chen Ying was on a train with local officials and policemen who were taking from Beijing her back to her home. She had gone to Beijing to appeal for Falun Dafa. Along the way, policemen threatened, insulted and beat Chen Ying. They handcuffed her to a luggage rack and only gave her half a piece of bread and half a bottle of water. They did not even allow her to close the door when she went to the washroom. As Chen Ying could not bear to take more abuse from them, she closed the door of the washroom and jumped out of the train at 2:34 p.m., at a location 280 kilometers along the Jing-Qin

Line. The train stopped after traveling another 20 kilometers. Commissar Li and the head of the No.2 Train Service Team sent Chen Ying to the Fengrun Hospital. At 6:00 p.m., as Chen Ying remained unconscious, Commissar Li said, "take her off oxygen," then he hurried Chen Ying's body to the Fengrun Crematorium that same night to put her into a storage freezer.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2001/1/9/5327.html

#### 2) Liu Qian, a 12-year-old girl, was persecuted and died

Liu Qian was a 3<sup>rd</sup> grade student at Gegezhuang Village's Primary School in Xiong County, Hebei Province. In November 15, 2003, Liu Qian was diagnosed with leukemia, and her parents were told that she could die at any moment.

At the sight of Liu Qian's sadness at her diagnosis, her parents decided to teach Liu Qian Falun Gong. Three days later, Liu Qian miraculously regained her appetite and wanted to get up to do the Falun Gong exercises. She recovered completely after only seven days. Liu Qian's parents took her to a hospital for an examination, which showed no sign of illness. For a full two months after Liu Qian's recovery, there was no recurrence of the illness.

Liu Qian returned to school on February 6. After learning that Liu Qian had been practicing Falun Gong, the teacher immediately sent her to the principal's office where the principal scolded her. He would not allow Liu Qian to attend school unless she gave up the practice. No matter how hard Liu Qian tried to explain that Falun Dafa had cured her illness, none of the

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会

**Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners** 

4

#### Falun Gong Persecution Report

teachers believed what she said and claimed that it was a misdiagnosis. The principal told Liu Qian's mother who was called in that afternoon to write a pledge letter, to guarantee that Liu Qian would stop practicing Falun Gong. The mother refused. Soon after Liu Qian's mother left, Yang Tianxiang, Longwan Township's School principal and Xu Xiaohei, the principal from Gegezhuang Village's Primary School deprived Liu Qian of her right to attend school and sent her home.

From that day on, Liu Qian was deeply depressed. Whenever someone mentioned the word "teacher" in front of her, she would become frightened, angry and faint. Liu Qian's health continued to deteriorate after that. On February 11 she suddenly lost consciousness, lapsed into a coma and died.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/3/5/45754p.html

#### 3) Gao Jingyu, an 8-year old girl, died after mistreatment in Beijing



On March 5, 2000, Gao Jingyu, was diagnosed with leukemia. After being hospitalized several times, her situation continually became worse. Jingyu's 59-year-old grandfather Mr. Gao decided to teach Jingyu Falun Gong, in the hope that Falun Gong would helped little Jingyu to regain health, just as Falun Gong had helped him tremendously, both physically and mentally since he started practicing Falun Gong in June 1999. From that day on, Mr. Gao started teaching Jingyu the Falun Gong exercises. Miracles happened shortly after: Jingyu, who had been so weak and unable to stand, started to recover and even to walk. Soon, she could even ride a bike for a fair distance. The whole family was very happy to

see the changes in the little girl.

Following her recovery, her grandmother, father, and mother started practicing Falun Gong, one after another. On July 20, 2000, the town police officers arrested Mr. Gao and other practitioners including little Jingyu in the village at their exercise site. They even forced Jingyu to watch her father being abused and tortured. This little girl then was detained in a cell in the police station with all the other adult practitioners. She weakly lay down on the concrete slab, anxious, scared and confused. After being kept in the cell for over six hours, Jingyu was released and taken back home by her mother.

In the morning of July 24, police officers came and again arrested Mr. Gao and other practitioners, including Jingyu. Jingyu was released an hour later. Unable to practice Falun Gong, Jingyu's situation quickly became worse. She vomited and also spit up blood. Jingyu passed away on august 18<sup>th</sup>, 2000.

Related link: http://clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2000/9/8/8294.html

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

5

### 4) Meng Hao, an 8-month-old baby, was tortured to death along with mother Wang Lixuan



Eight-month-old baby Meng Hao died in police custody when his 27-year-old mother Ms. Wang Lixuan was killed.

Ms. Wang Lixuan was a Falun Dafa practitioner from Nangou Village, Qixiasikou Town, Yantai City, Shandong Province. Since July 20, 1999, Wang Lixuan had gone to Beijing eight times to appeal for Falun Gong. On October 21, 2000 she was arrested on her way to Beijing. She later ran away from the detention center, but was arrested again on October 22. Wang Lixuan and her son died at the Tuanhe Forced Labor Dispatch Division in Beijing on November 7, 2000. According to the coroner's exam, Wang Lixuan's neck and knucklebones were broken, her skull was

caved in and there was a needle stuck in her lower back. Two deep bruises were found on Meng Hao's ankles, and two black and blue spots on his head as well as blood in his nose. It was deduced that the bruises may have been caused when little Meng Hao was handcuffed on his ankles and hung upside down.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2001/5/6/9304.html

### 5) Wang Shujie, a 4-year-old girl from Shandong Province, died as a result of the persecution

Four-year-old Wang Shujie lived in Nanmiaoshan No.3 Village, Miaoshan Town, Laiwu City, Shandong Province. On July 15, 2002, young Shujie died after being forced to live under trepidation and persecution for two years.

On July 19, 2000, when Shujie's mother was feeding Shujie, a group of police officers broke into their home and abducted all adults in the house in front of Shujie. On December 3, 2000, the police took Shujie's father and Shujie to the Guansi Police Station for interrogation. Before her father even opened his mouth, the officer yelled at him and used a book to slap his face. Shujie immediately passed out from great shock



and fear. After she came to herself, she had a fever and was sweating. She swayed her head from side to side from severe pain in her head. She was restless and uneasy and banged her head against the wall. After she returned home, she was in a lethargic state for a whole night and a whole morning. The police went to Shujie's home over and over again, to arrest her family members. Pass out

Shujie's health was greatly damaged from repeated great mental shock and from living in fear for a long time. She was also otherwise devastated and had difficulty eating. Shujie was very 全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会

**Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners** 

thin and looked just like skin and bones. She was 85 centimeters tall two years ago and had not grown any taller. She could not eat much and didn't sleep well. In July 2002, Shujie died. Because her parents could not raise the money to cover her medical bills, they were forced to leave all of their belongings with the hospital before they went back to their desolate home.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2003/6/4/36483.html

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

### **Chapter Two**

### Cases of Orphans and Semi-Orphans Whose Parent(s) Persecuted to Death

### 1) Rongrong, a 4-year-old girl, has experienced several separations from her parents



Zou Farong (Rongrong) was born on Nov. 15, 1999. Though she is only four years old, she has no mother or father around to care for her.

Both Rongrong's father Zou Songtao and mother Zhang Yunhe were Falun Gong practitioners. Because Zou Songtao did not renounce his belief in Falun Gong, he was arrested many times before finally sentenced to forced labor in Wangcun Village Forced Labor Camp in Zibo City, Shandong Province. Zou was eventually tortured to death on November 3, 2000. Rongrong was only 11 months old then. Rongrong's mother, Zhang Yunhe, was an accountant at TFL China Limited in Qingdao City. Because she practices Falun Gong, the company suspended her from her job. In May 2001,

Zhang Yunhe was discovered to have handed out Falun Gong truth-clarification materials. To avoid arrest, she went into exile. There has been no news of her for a long time.

As a result, Rongrong had to live with her grandparents since she was two and-a-half years old. Rongrong's grandma could not withstand the grief of separation from her daughter and losing her son-in-law. She passed away in August 2001. Father, mother and grandmother, the three dearest ones to Rongrong, had left her in succession.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2003/1/20/31124.html

# 2) Falun Gong practitioner Wu Lingxia tortured to death, and left behind a teenage son



Wu Lingxia was arrested in May of 2001 by local police while visiting a fellow practitioner. She was then illegally detained for a month in the Shuangyashan Detention Center. On July 2, 2001 she was transferred to the Xigemu Labor Center in Jiamusi City, where she was severely tortured for long periods of time. This resulted in hepato-cirrhosis and ascites. Because of this, she was sent home after a one-year-long detention. On July 27, 2002, thirty-sevenyear old Wu Lingxia passed away, still holding her firm belief in Falun Dafa. She left behind a teenage son and parents in their

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

8

#### Falun Gong Persecution Report

seventies. Wu Lingxia's husband divorced her because he could no longer bear the severe, continual mental pressure from police harassment.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2002/7/25/24465.html

# 3) Falun Gong practitioner Ms. Cui Zhengshu died from torture, and left behind a 9-year old son



Piao Yonghe is a Korean Chinese, who was born on November 5, 1994, and is currently in fourth grade. He is living with his maternal grandparents after his mother Cui Zhengshu died in the persecution.

Falun Gong practitioner Ms. Cui Zhengshu, 36, was a Korean national from the Chuanying District, Jilin City. In March 2002 she was arrested, was illegally sentenced to three years of forced labor and sent to the Heizuizi Female Labor Camp in Changchun City. Cui Zhengshu suffered unimaginable physical and mental torment and severe

torture in the labor camp until she was on the verge of death. Being afraid of taking responsibility for Cui's imminent death, the labor camp authorities released her on medical parole on April 18, 2003. Cui Zhengshu died on August 12, 2003 from her severe injuries. She left behind a young child.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2003/8/24/39454.html

### 4) Falun Gong practitioner Zhang Zhuo tortured to death, and left behind a 6-year-old boy



was only 6 years old.

Zhang Haonan, male, is 8 years old now (He was born on June 11, 1996). He lives with his grandmother and mother and is a three-grade student at the Yucai Street Experimental Elementary School in Leshan City.

Mr. Zhang Zhuo, 32, was an official in the Agriculture Bureau in Leshan City, Sichuan province. He started to practice Falun Gong in 1996 and was very active in promoting Falun Gong. On June 7, 2002, Zhang Zhuo was arrested and sent to the Zhanggongqiao Second Police Station. On June 8, Zhang died in the police station. There was blood on his teeth, bruises on his face and marks on his neck, indicating he was probably strangled with a rope. When Zhang Zhuo died, his son Zhang Haonan

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

It was reported that Zhang Zhuo's family was not notified to see his body until June 11. They saw his body at the crematorium. His death was so sudden that it was difficult for his family to accept. Although he appeared to have been strangled with a rope, his facial expression was very peaceful and not frightened at all, which reminded his family of his bespectacled, eversmiling face. The police did not give an explanation for the cause of Zhang's death.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2002/7/26/24537.html

### 5) Wu Qingbin's 12-year-old son became an orphan due to Wu's death of torture

On July 20, 2001, Wu Qingbin was tortured to death at the Huainan Labor Camp, Auhui Province. His 12 years old son became an orphan. The detail information about Wu's son is currently unavailable.

Falun Gong practitioner Wu Qingbin, male, 37-year-old, was a technician in the Huainan Chemical Engineering Factory, Anhui Province. On March 1, 2000 he went to Beijing to appeal for Falun Gong and was then was illegally detained for 15 days by personnel from the Datong Police Station in Huainan City. On April 4, 2000, the police took him to the Huainan Second Detention Center because he practiced Falun Gong in public. During his stay in the Huainan Second Detention Center he suffered many inhuman tortures. In the middle of August 2000 he was sentenced to one-and-a-half years in a labor camp. Wu was bailed out for medical treatment when he was diagnosed with pulmonary edema. In July 2001, after he was arrested again, he went on a hunger strike for over ten days to protest the cruel persecution. He was bailed out shortly after his health became bad. On July 19, 2001, people from the Huainan Political and Law Committee caught him in another area, forcibly took him back to the Huainan Labor Camp and tortured him to death the next day.

Related link: http://clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2001/8/6/12766.html

#### 6) Falun Gong practitioner Dai Xiangguang died from gross abuse under the persecution and left his daughter a semi-orphan

On July 23, 1999, Falun Gong practitioner Dai Xiangguang died of persecution and left his parents, wife and daughter living in very difficult circumstance in the countryside. Detailed information about his wife and daughter is not available at present.

Mr. Dai Xiangguang was a local contact person for the Futian City Falun Gong Exercise Group. Before July 20, 1999 when the crackdown on Falun Gong began, Dai had been detained many times. On July 22, 1999 he was handcuffed by a county police officer. Later, his uncle went to see him but the police department supervisors did not was not permit a visit. At one o'clock on July 23, his uncle went again to the detention room on the 7th floor and

> 全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

10

asked to see him but was again refused. When he went down to the 6th floor, he heard a scream. Then the police told him that Dai had jumped from the building and had fallen onto the third floor balcony. He ran to the third floor but did not see any trace of him. The police told him that he was sent to the hospital already. When he went to hospital, the police officer stopped him and told him that Dai was undergoing emergency treatment. When Dai's family rushed to the hospital, the police only let them quickly glance at Dai's body before the body was sent to the crematorium.

Related link: http://clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2000/12/5/4249.html

### 7) Falun Gong practitioner Cui Guoqing tortured to death, and daughter became a semi-orphan

On July 12, 2000, we assume Cui Guoqing was tortured to death, leaving his young daughter and wife behind. The detailed information on Cui's daughter is currently unavailable.

Falun Gong practitioner Mr. Cui Guoqing, 36, lived in the Yongqiang Area, Changyi District, Jilin City. He traveled to Beijing to appeal for Falun Gong on July 5, 2000 had and unfurled a banner in Tiananmen Square on July 7. He was arrested and transferred to the Jilin Provincial Liaison Office in Beijing at around 10:00 A.M. on July 11, 2000.

After being interrogated at 11:00 A.M., he told other practitioners later that he refused the police's demand to release information about other practitioners and refused to curse Falun Gong and its founder. As the result, he was beaten hard. Around 1:00 P.M., Mr. Cui was interrogated for the second time and never returned.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/8/31/51913.html

#### 8) Falun Gong practitioner Zhao Xudong died as a result of torture; his 8year-old daughter became a semi-orphan

On February 7, 2004, practitioner Zhao Xudong was tortured to death at Lanzhou City Hualinshan No. 2 Detention Center, leaving his his 8-year-old daughter as a semi- orphan. The details of Zhao's daughter are unknown.

Mr. Zhao Xudong, 34, was an employee of Lanzhou City's Chemical Industry Company in Gansu Province. On December 7, 2003, policemen led by Pei Huaiwei from the National Security Brigade arrested Mr. Zhao Xudong and put him into the Hualinshan No. 2 Detention Center in Lanzhou City. On February 7, 2004, Zhao Xudong died in a prison hospital as a result of torture. According to witnesses, his nose was full of blood at the time of his death. On December 7, 2003, Ms. Bai Jinyu, Mr. Zhao Xudong's mother was also arrested. Ms. Li Hongping, Mr. Zhao's wife, was sentenced to three years of forced labor. Zhao's elderly father

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

11

and eight-year-old daughter were left home. Zhao's father suffered a mental breakdown from the agonizing loss of his son.

Related link: http://clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/2/26/45504.html

#### 9) Falun Gong practitioner Zhan Jinyan died as a result of torture, her 2year-old son became a semi-orphan

On December 2, 2001, Falun Gong practitioner Zhan Jinyan was tortured to death, and left her 2-year-old son as an orphan. The detailed information of her son was currently unknown.

Ms. Zhan Jinyan, in her 20s, was a resident of Yinzhuang Village in Baoding City's Jiangcheng Township, Hebei Province. In the evening of November 26, 2001 she went to Beijing to appeal for an end of the persecution of Falun Dafa but was illegally detained by personnel from the Yanqing County's Police Department in Beijing. On November 29, authorities from Jiangcheng Township's government notified Zhan Jinyan's family that she was in the Yanqing County Hospital being given emergency care. She was on the verge of death at the time and passed away 3 days later.

Related link: http://clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2002/1/11/17620.html

#### 10) Falun Gong practitioner Hao Runjuan tortured to death and 2- yearold son lost mother

On March 18, 2002, practitioner Hao Runjuan was tortured to death at Guangzhou City's Baiyun Detention Center. Her 2-year-old son lost the mother; her husband sadly lost his beloved wife and the elderly parents could no longer see their beloved daughter.

On February 25, 2002, Ms. Hao Runjuan, a practitioner from the Baiyun District, Guangzhou City was arrested when she was watching a Dafa video with a fellow practitioner at home. On March 18, 2002 she was tortured to death at Guangzhou City Baiyun Detention Center. Within 22 days of detention, Hao Runjuan suffered all kinds of brutal torture including beating, force-feeding, poisoning with unknown drugs, shackles on her feet, and other abuses. Every night she was prevented from sleeping; after being tortured for 22 days, Hao Runjuan lost her life, and left her son, husband and parents behind.

Related links: <u>http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2002/6/24/23433.html</u> <u>http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2002/6/11/22992.html</u> <u>http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2002/7/11/24004.html</u>

> 全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

12

#### 11) Falun Gong practitioner Chen Chengyong died as a result of torment under the persecution; his 4-year-old daughter misses her dad



Dai Fadu, practitioner Chen Chengyoug and Dai Zhizhen's daughter, is four-year-old now. She lost her father when she was 15 months old. Along her growing up path, she has learned to travel with her mother to 37 countries, to tell the people the tragic story of her father who died as a result of persecution for refusing to give up practicing Falun Gong in China.

Fadu's Father, Mr. Chen Chengyong, from the Haizhu District of Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, was an electrician at the Guangzhou Paper Manufacturing Corporation. Because he went to Beijing many times to appeal for Falun Gong, he lost his job. In November 2000, to avoid the brainwashing class, he left home and

rented a different place to live.

Soon after, information came out that Chen had died in a hut. When his elder sister went to identify him, she found that his body had undergone significant decomposition. It is assumed that he had been dead for some time before the police notified his family.

Related link: <u>http://clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2001/7/24/12496.html</u> http://clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2002/3/12/19740.html

#### 12) Falun Gong practitioner Mr. He Huajiang tortured to death and left 14-year-old boy as an orphan

Practitioner He Huajiang, from Heilongjiang Province, had worked in the Fourth Mine in the Sixth Oil Extraction Factory in Daqing city. On September 16, 2002, Daqing authorities told the Qingxin Police Station personnel in the Hulu District to forcibly remove He Huajiang from his workplace. On December 23rd, after a three-months detention period, he was put into the Daqing City Forced Labor Camp. At midnight the same day He Huajiang was brutally tortured to death. As his wife had passed away, his only son was left an orphan.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2003/11/30/42721p.html

#### 13) Falun Gong practitioner Yang Yi died as a result of torture, schoolaged child lost his father

On November 16, 2001, practitioner Yang Yi was tortured to death at a detention center, left his school age child as an orphan. The details regarding this child are currently unknown.

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

13

Mr. Yang Yi, 38, from Hunan Province, was an engineer at the Wengfu Phosphor Plant. On December 26, 2000, Yang Yi was arrested when he was distributing Falun Gong truthclarifying flyers in the plant dormitory. Consequently, Yang Yi's wife, a practitioner with the last name of Zhou, was also sent to a detention center. Their school-aged child and Zhou's elderly mother had to support themselves. They experienced many difficulties in their daily lives without anybody to take care of them. On October 24, 2001 Yang Yi was sentenced to seven years in a forced labor camp. On November 15, the officials from the labor camp notified Yang's family that Yang Yi was dying and sent Yang to a hospital. When Yang was transferred out of the detention center, he was extremely skinny and frail. He vomited everything that he tried to ingest, including water. The next day, November 16, 2001, Yang Yi passed away.

Related link: http://clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2003/9/26/40696.html http://clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2001/12/19/16931.html

#### 14) Falun Gong practitioner Ms. Tang Yun tortured to death and 2-yearold son became an orphan

Ms. Tang Yun was born on March 22, 1970 and had lived at Apt. 2, Floor 7, Unit 3 in the Jinianbei Complex, Zitong Town, Tongnan County, Chongqing. She had worked at the Zitong Town Department Store. On December 4, 1999, Tang Yun went to Beijing to appeal for Falun Gong, but was arrested and tortured to death on her police-escorted trip back from Beijing. At that time, her son was only two years old.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/5/19/48302.html

#### 15) Falun Gong practitioner Peng Chunrong died as a result of torture, 8year-old child became an orphan

In the middle of April 2004, Ms. Peng Chunrong was tortured to death in a courtroom close to the town police station, left her 8 years old child behind. Ms. Peng Chunrong was a Falun Gong practitioner living in Baofeng Village, Taiping Township, Duzhou Town, Changshou District, Chongqing City. On February 19, 2004, she was arrested while clarifying the truth of Falun Gong in Duzhou Town. Seeing no hope to extort money, the Duzhou Town authorities sent Peng to the town brainwashing class, where she was subjected to inhuman torture. Soon after she died.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/7/12/50153.html

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

14

### 16) Falun Gong practitioner Chai Yong dies as a result of torture, leaving infant behind

In October 1999, Chai Yong, 29 years old, a self-employed worker in Changji City, the Xinjiang Autonomous Region, and his wife (also a practitioner) left behind their baby of only several months old and went to Beijing to appeal for Falun Gong. They were arrested in Beijing. The local police retrieved them and sent them to a detention center where Chai was beaten many times. He went on a hunger strike for over 20 days to protest the persecution. Later, Chai was sentenced to 1.5 years in a forced labor camp where Chai was tortured severely and injured. In August 2001, Chai Yong died from abuse under the persecution.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2002/1/23/18025p.html

#### 17) Falun Gong practitioner Tian Shiqiang died from unknown causes while appealing in Beijing , left his 2-year-old child behind

On June 5, 2000, Mr. Tian Shiqiang, a Falun Gong practitioner from Lanjiang Town, Suining City of Sichuan Province, took his 2-year-old child to Beijing to appeal for Falun Gong. On June 7, his family members got a notice from Beijing that Mr. Tian Shiqiang had died.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2000/6/13/8790.html

#### 18) 12-year-old daughter witnessed mother Su Qionghua being murdered



On December 18, 2000, practitioner Su Qionghua's 12-year-old daughter witnessed her mother being kicked out of a window by policemen from the City's National Security Squad and from the Chuanshan Police Sub-Station and died.

In the morning of Dec. 18, 2000, policemen from the National Security Squad and from the Chuanshan Police Sub-Station came to search Su Qionghua's home and tried to confiscate her personal belongings. Su Qionghua refused to open the door, and tried to reason with them. The police surrounded her house, yelling and shouting. Later, two policemen

used ropes to gain access to her 6th floor apartment from the roof. At that time, Su Qionghua was leaning out the window explaining the truth about Falun Gong to around three to four hundred spectators outside. When the policeman lowered himself down from the roof, he fiercely kicked her. She grabbed the policeman's foot with both hands, but the policeman straightened his foot quickly and Su Qionghua fell from the 6th floor and died.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2001/1/5/5413.html)

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

15

#### 19) Falun Gong practitioner Tang Fafen died as a result of torture, left her 9-year-old son behind



Falun Gong practitioner Ms. Tang Fafen, 33, lived in Group Four, Village Three in Mengyang Town, Pengzhou City, Sichuan Province. On March 3, 2003, Falun Gong practitioner Tang Fafen was illegally sentenced to two years of forced labor. She was brutally tortured in the Zizhong Female Labor Camp in Sichuan Province. On April 12, 2003, Tang Fafen was released, on the verge of death, and passed away at home two days later, leaving her 9 years old son behind.

**Related link**: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2003/4/28/35013.html

# 20) Falun Gong practitioner Xu Zhilian jumped to her death while escaping police; left 5-year-old child behind



After July 20, 1999, practitioner Xu Zhilian, 31 years old, then teacher in the Fuqin Elementary School in Chengdu City, took her 5year-old child with her to Beijing to appeal for Falun Gong. Police arrested her in the vicinity of Tiananmen Square and released her after a few days of illegal detention. In early 2001, the police spotted Xu and other two practitioners while they were posting and distributing Falun Gong materials. The two fellow practitioners were arrested. Luckily, Xu escaped, but could not return home for a few days. On June 28, when Xu came back home to visit her husband and child, the police from the Jinniu District, Chengdu City, surrounded their home and fired three shots before they broke down the door and entered the home. In order to avoid arrest by the wicked police, Xu jumped out of

the window and landed on the roof of her neighbor's house. She slipped and fell to the ground below and broke her neck. She was sent to the emergency room, but on the next day Xu's family members were notified that she had passed away.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2001/7/9/12045.html

### 21) Falun Gong practitioner Tang Jianping died as a result of torture, left his wife and 3-year-old son behind

Falun Gong practitioner Mr. Tang Jianping, in his 20s, was arrested for making truthclarifying materials and flying truth-clarifying balloons. While in detention, he held firmly to his belief in Falun Gong and was thus subjected to both physical and psychological torture.

> 全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

16

#### Falun Gong Persecution Report

His work unit fired him and his wife was forced to divorce him, separating him from their 3year-old son. After being held in the detention center for one year, he was transferred to the Xinhua Forced Labor Camp in Mianyang City, Sichuan Province. Later he was released on medical parole because of his extremely weak condition. After he returned home, he passed away in August 2002.

Related link: <u>http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/3/13/45987.html</u> http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2003/1/18/31047.html)

### 22) Falun Gong practitioner Lu Xingguo killed by police, left school age daughter behind

Mr. Lu Xingguo was a 45-year-old Falun Gong practitioner who lived in Wanggang Hongyi Village, Tang Town in the Pudong New District, Shanghai. On October 15, 2003 he died from torture in Shanghai Qingpu District's No. 3 Forced Labor Camp and left his 60-year-old mother, a disabled and bedridden father, his wife and a school-age daughter behind.



#### **Related link:**

http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/2/27/45532p.html

# 23) Sixteen-year-old girl lost her mother, and facing the possibility of dropping off the school

Falun Gong practitioner Ms. Gao Lijun, 42, was a worker at the Taiyuan Axletree Factory. In December 2000, Gao and her husband Wang Jianrong went to Beijing to appeal for Falun Gong. This led to their arrest and being jailed in the Taiyuan Detention Center. On January 22, 2001, the detention center told their families to pick them up at the hospital. When Gao's family saw them, Gao was already at the brink of death. She had lost control of her bowels and bladder. Wang was also in critical condition. With the family's tender care, Wang's health improved a little; however, the police immediately took him back to the detention center. Since Gao's life was still in danger, the police allowed her family to take her back home. Three days later, Gao passed away at home, leaving her 16-year-old daughter behind. The girl does not have any income to support herself and she faces the possibility of having to drop out of school.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2001/6/16/11487.html

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

17

### 24) Falun Gong practitioner Zhao Dongmei tortured to death; young daughter motherless

Falun Gong practitioner Ms. Zhao Dongmei was a former employee of the Housing Reform Office in Linfen District, Shanxi Province. She went to Beijing to appeal for Falun Gong in the middle of December 2000 and was illegally arrested and brought back to the Linfen City Detention Center. She went on a hunger strike to protest the persecution. Male prisoners force-fed her cruelly, which resulted in her death on December 27, 2000. Ms. Zhao's death left her young daughter motherless and her elderly parents with broken hearts. The police tried to deny their crime, telling Zhao Dongmei's family that she had "died of a high fever."

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2002/10/9/27390.html

### 25) Falun Gong practitioner Xiao Peifeng tortured to death, wife and two school age kids live a hard life



Falun Gong practitoiner Mr. Xiao Peifeng from Xidongyu Village, Ezhuang Township, Zichuan District, Zibo City, Shandong Province was tortured to death on August 24, 2003.

Mr. Xiao Peifeng and his wife Li Guangying were both Falun Gong practitioners. After the persecution of Falun Gong began on July 20, 1999, the couple went to Beijing many times to appeal for Falun Gong. Both of them were brutally persecuted by the local government. During their detention, the couple's

two school age children were left home alone. After Xiao was tortured to death at Qiugu Labor Camp, Li Guangying and her two children live a very hard life.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/3/18/46172p.html

### 26) Falun Gong practitioner Mou Naiwu killed during the Persecution; left his wife and daughter with no means for support

At 2:00 A.M. on June 13, 2004, Falun Gong practitioner Mou Naiwu, 41 years old, died as a result of extensive torture. He was a teacher at the Weifang Institute, Weifang City, Shandong Province who benefited much from Falun Gong practice. Under the Jiang regime's persecution, he suffered severe mental and physical torment, including abduction, illegal sentencing to labor camps, threats and being financially cut off. His wife and daughter currently have no means of making a living since their husband and father died.

Related link: <u>http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/9/9/52223.html</u> <u>http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/7/10/50069p.html</u> 全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

18

#### 27) Falun Gong practitioner Li Guojun presumably beaten to death; 12year-old son became an orpha

Falun Gong practitioner Ms. Li Guojun, 37 years old, lived in Dongyu Village, Weifang City, Shandong Province. Since 2001, she went into exile to avoid further persecution and unlawful arrest. She disappeared on April 16, 2002. In early June 2002, Cui (first name unknown), the Shouguang Town Party secretary went to Li Guojun's home and told Li Guojun's husband that she was being held in Shouguang's "610 Office" brainwashing class at that time. He ordered the husband to pay 2,000 Yuan before he would release her. The husband borrowed 2,000 Yuan and gave it to Cui, and then waited for his wife to be released. Instead, he and his family suffered a complete shock when on June 9, the authorities told Li Guojun's family that his wife had died! Furthermore, her body was immediately rushed to the Daotian Town Crematory and was about to be hurriedly cremated, without her family's knowledge or consent. With the family's strong request, the callous authorities finally allowed them to view the body. They saw that Li Guojun's body was covered in bruises and was in a completely wretched state. In the morning of June 10, the authorities in Shouguang City, using coercion and threats, insisted that Li Guojun's family should hastily finish with the funeral.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2002/6/20/23326.html

### 28) Falun Gong practitioner Liu Shuchun beaten to death and wife sent to forced labor; left 7 year-old daughter with elderly grandparents

Toward the end of 2000, practitioner Mr. Liu Shuchun, from the Third Section in Songjiang Town, Changyi, Shandong Province was sentenced to three years of forced labor and was sent to the Changle Forced Labor Camp in the Weifang District. On January 3, 2001, Liu Shuchun was beaten to death. His whole body was dark blue. His wife, also a practitioner, was subject to forced labor at that time and left their 7-year-old daughter with elderly grandparents, to suffer the hard life.

The labor camp police had incited inmates Liu Chunxiang, Zhang Jintao, Niu Zhongxin and Liu Xuetian to torture Liu in their 'usual' way for Falun Gong practitioners. They first beat Liu Shuchun, then gave him a "bath," which was placing Liu in water and then, using tools like batons, a small stool, a whisk broom, a sweeper, and others to beat Liu Shuchun in the water, then blew dry Liu with an electric fan. During the entire process, people could hear Liu's painful cries until his voice faded away in the end.

After Liu Shuchun was beaten to death, the police wrapped Liu's head and entire body up in cloth and carried his corpse out of the labor camp to the hospital the next day. The police also forced the hospital to announce "Liu died from disease," although a staff member of the hospital accidentally disclosed information that the dead body that had arrived from the labor camp had obviously been subjected to a death by beating.

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

19

People who joined in on the murder of Falun Dafa practitioner Mr.Liu Shuchun are Xu Lihua, Zhou Jingtian, Lu Yibo, Zhu Weile, Ding Guihua, Zhu Anle, Han Huiyue and a few others whose names we don't know.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/5/14/48049p.html

### 29) 2-year-old and 13-year-old daughters left without a mom when practitioner Yu Xiuling was tortured to death

Yu Xiuling was a Falun Gong practitioner in Chaoyang city, Liaoning province. She was persecuted to death on September 19, 2001 by policemen in Police Station at Longcheng District of Chaoyang city. At her death, she left behind her husband and two daughters. Her elder daughter, Feng Guangjing was turning 13 years old at the time of her death. Yu Xiuling's husband has been taking care of her. Her younger daughter Feng Lei was less than three years old when she was persecuted to death. The little girl has been living with her aunt since her mother's death, because her father is not in a position to raise two children on his own.

Yu Xiuling was a villager in Chaoyang city. She was born in 1969. On July 24, 2001 of Chinese Lunar Year, she was taken away from her home by policemen from police station at Longcheng District of Chaoyang city. In only five days, she was persecuted to death. Police did not notify her family members until the day after her death. On the evening of that day, her body was forcibly taken to be cremated. Only her husband and her brother were at the scene when her body was cremated. None of the other relatives were allowed to be present.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/10/24/53790p.html

# **30)** Falun Gong Practitioner Ms. Jiang Chunxian from Dehui City, Jilin province died from persecution, survived by a daughter Qu Yanru

Qu Yanru, female, 14 years old, studies in Class Five Grade One at No. 8 Middle School in Dehui City, Jilin Province, and currently lives at No.5 Commune, Gaotaizi Village, Dafangshen Town, Dehui City, Jilin Province with her grandfather Qu Guang'en, 57 years old, and her grandmother Zhang Jingye, 56 years old. Her mother Jiang Chunxian died from persecution because she practiced Falun Gong. Her father has long been away from home and working in other province.

Qu Yanru's mother Jiang Chunxian was born in December 1971. She began practicing Falun Gong in April 1998. On October 26, 2002, Changchun City's Luyuan Police Precinct abducted her from her temporary residence in Dehui City and interrogated her with torture. After being held at Changchun City's No. 3 Detention Center for a month, she was transferred

> 全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

20

#### Falun Gong Persecution Report

back to Dehui City's Detention Center, and detained their for one year. On January 15, 2004, she was sentenced to 8 years in prison and sent to Jiln Province's Women's Prison (Changchun City's Heizuizi Prison) for further persecution. She was tortured to death on February 19, 2004, within one month after being held there.

Related link: http://search.minghui.org/mh/articles/2004/10/1/85492.html

#### 31) Six-year-old Chi Yujing lives with grandmother and greatgrandmother after father died from persecution



Chi Yujing, female, was born on February 10, 1999. Her father Chi Huiwen died from persecution for practicing Falun Gong, and her mother left home. Chi Yujing now lives with her grandmother and greatgrandmother who is handicapped and 83 years old. They are experiencing great financial difficulties.

Chi Huiwen was born on February 13, 1968. He was Korean Chinese and lived in Yanji City, Jilin Province. Around August 27, 2001, the police from the Yannan Police Station in Yanji City ransacked Chi Huiwen's

home. They took Chi Huiwen to the Yannan Police Station and tortured him for three days in an attempt to make him give up Falun Gong.

The then police sent him to a brainwashing center in Yilan Town, Yanji City, where they tortured him physically and mentally. Around October 1, 2001, Piao Nanzhu, the head of the brainwashing class and other perpetrators again abducted Chi Huiwen and tortured Chi Huiwen for two days. Fearing Chi Huiwen would die in the class, they released him. The officers from the police department and the street office continued to monitor and harass Chi Huiwen after his release. Chi Huiwen's condition worsened by the day, and he became completely paralyzed on March 12, 2004 and he passed away on April 22.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/10/22/53706p.html

### 32) Three year-old Huang Yin's mother died from persecution and father left China



Huang Ying (nickname: Kai Xin), female, was born on May 18, 2001. Three months after Huang Ying's birth, she was forced to separate from her mother to avoid persecution. That was the last time she saw her mother alive.

On October 30, 1999, Huang Ying's mother Luo Zhixiang went to Beijing to appeal for Falun Gong and was sent back. She was detained for 20 days. On June 13, 2000 she went to Beijing again to appeal and was beaten and detained for one day at the Tiananmen Square Police Station. On October 29,

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

21

2000 and November 20, 2002, Ms. Luo was sent twice to Division 2 of No. 1 Forced Labor Camp in Chini Town, Huadu District, Guangzhou City by perpetrators in Guangzhou City, during which time the guards beat, force-fed and tortured her with a method called the "Dead Person's Bed." On December 5, 2002, when she was one-and-a-half years old, Huang Ying saw her mother's body. Her father Huang Guohua, also a Falun Gong practitioner, was then in a labor camp and didn't know his wife had died.

Right now Huang Ying lives with her grandparents in a dilapidated house made of sun-dried mud bricks (adobe bricks). Her grandparents have no source of income and cannot afford to send her to a kindergarten.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/10/4/53117.html

### 33) Six-year-old Huang Xinyu orphaned from persecution and living with grandparents



Huang Xinyu was born on January 08, 1998. She is in first grade at Guangming Elementary School, Wanghua District, Fushun City. Her parents, both Falun Gong practitioners, died as a result of persecution. She is living with paternal grandparents.

Huang Xinyu's father Huang Ke used to work in the No. 10 Research Branch in Fushun Petroleum Chemical Industry Research Institute. On July 3, 2003, Huang Ke was tortured to death in the No. 1 Detention Center of Fushun City at 31 years of age.

On September 29, 1999, Huang Xinyu's mother Zhong Yunxiu was persecuted to death at 27 years of age. Zhong was an English teacher

at Beisanjia Middle School in Qingyuan County in Fushun City, Liaoning Province. On July 20, 1999, Zhong went to appeal for Falun Gong in Beijing. In late September 1999, she was illegally arrested. On September 29, 1999, while being escorted back to her home province, Zhong jumped from a speeding train in order to escape from the illegal detention and died. Huang Ke's mother has a mental disorder, and Huang Ke worked at the same work unit as his father, where people were deceived by anti-Falun Gong propaganda. As a result, Huang Ke's father has to bear a lot of rumors and slanderous comments from his colleagues.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/10/23/53756p.html

#### 34) Information of the orphans after death of father Luo Kaijun

Falun Gong practitioner Luo Kaijun of Hubei Province was tortured to death on September 23 2002. Following is the current situation of his two sons.

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

The oldest son Luo Liteng, born on September 20 1978, with the help from fellow practitioners, he bought a second hand tricycle in 2003, now lived with the tricycle in Macheng City, Hubei Province. Youngest son Luo Changda, born on July 22 1981, he entered the Medical school of Wuhan University, started the resident practice from 2004. Paid all of his tuitions with loan.

Luo Kaijun, born in December 1964, from group two of Fanghe Village, Yingji Township, Zhongyi Town, Macheng City, Hubei Province. On December 3 2000, Luo Kaijun and wife Wu Yanwen, older son and another fellow practitioner totally four went to Beijing to appeal for Falun Dafa, got arrested unlawfully at Tiananmen Square. Then was held in police station of Zhongyi Town of Macheng City, Hubei. Luo Kaijun was persecuted to critical condition in the police station of Zhongyi Town, then the personnel of the police station fear of taking the responsibility, had him family take him home on April 28 2001. After he was taken back home, his health didn't restore, sometimes it's good sometimes bad. He died at home at around 4 am of September 23 2002.

Related link: http://minghui.ca/mh/articles/2004/10/25/87501.html

### 35) Two-year-old orphan Wang Tianxin was left behind after both his mother and uncle were tortured to death



Wang Tianxin, male, was born on Jul 31, 2002. He's currently being adopted by his aunt Feng Xiaomei. Tianxin has not been able to register his ID since he was born, because both of his parents were Falun Gong practitioners.

Tianxin's mother, Feng Xiaomei, was a Falun Gong practitioner from Shijiazhuang city, Hebei province. She has been persecuted as she did not renounce her belief in Falun Gong, and died on June 1, 2004, at the age of 34. At that time, little Tianxin was just 22 months old. Tianxin's father, Wang Xiaofeng was forced to exile

due to his belief in Falun Gong, and has been chased by the "610" office since then. Tianxin's uncle, Wang Hongbin, also a Falun Gong practitioner, was tortured to death on Oct. 9, 2003.

Related link: http://minghui.ca/mh/articles/2004/10/13/86533.html

### **36)** The children of Falun Gong practitioner Song Huaping who was tortured to death

Mr. Song Huaping's son, Song Chenghong, is a college student. In order to support their family, Song Huaping's wife Cheng Aiying has to work as a tricycle driver.

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

23

Mr. Song Huaping's second son, Song Chenglong, had to quit school to work, in order to help support his brother in college.

Mr. Song Huaping has been detained six times for practicing Falun Gong. The last time he was detained in the Yingcheng City No.1 Detention Center. He was tortured until he was close to death, and was sent home because the center was afraid to take responsibility for his death. One month later, Mr. Song Huaping died at home on July 31, 2002, at the age of 43. Mr. Song Huaping's father is 76, his mother is 75, and they are living in Songjiawan Village, Panji Township, Yangling Town, Yingcheng City, Hubei Province, which is near Tuanshangao Mine. When she found out her son had been tortured to death, Mr. Song's mother cried until she couldn't see. They tend a one-acre field to make their living.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/10/21/53674p.html

### 37) Falun Gong practitioner Zang Dianlong died as a result of torture, left two school-age sons behind



Zang Haoran, male 16 years old, a Falun Dafa practitioner, student of Fourth Elementary School in Shuangcheng City.

Zang Haotong, male 14 years old, a Falun Dafa practitioner, student of Fourth Elementary School in Shuangcheng City.

Zang Dianlong, 41 years old, is the two boy's father. He developed leukemia in 1995 and the doctors claimed there was

no cure for his illness. Just as he was in deep despair, Zang Dianlong was very fortunate to obtain Dafa in 1996. On July 25, 1999, Zang Dianlong went to Beijing to appeal for Dafa. Thereafter, he suffered various types of persecution. The local "610 Office," police station and his work unit often came to his home to harass him. They often forced him to go to brainwashing classes. At the end of 2000, Zang again went to Beijing to appeal. He was arrested and sent to Shuangcheng City's liaison office in Beijing. Zang managed to escape. Afterwards, he left home to avoid further persecution. On the afternoon of July 8, 2002, the police surrounded a residential area in Shuangcheng, where Zang and his two sons temporarily resided.

In order to avoid more torture, Zang Dianlong jumped out of the window from the sixth floor. Unfortunately, he died on the spot. Zang Dianlong's wife, Xu Youqin, is 37 years old. She was sentenced to 15 years in prison and is now being held in the First Women's Prison in Heilongjiang Province. At present, 16-year-old Haoran lives with his grandmother, and 14-year-old Haotong lives with his elder uncle Zang Dianchao.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/10/22/53705p.html

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

24

#### 38) Falun Gong practitioner Su Baolan was tortured to death, left a 16year-old son as an orphan

Han Zhihui, a 16 years old boy, lived at Shiren Village, Shidui Town, Anqu City, Shangdong Province. He was a second grade high school student at Qingyun High School, Anqu City. Since his mother was tortured to death, Han Zhihui was very sad. In 2003, Han's father Han Mengqing married again but the new stepmother was very mean to Han Zhihui that made his life even bitter.

Su Baolan, Han Zhihui's mother, was born in Shiren Village, Shidui Town, Anqu City in 1964. In September 2001, the vicious people tortured her to death when she was only 37 years old. Su Baolan was very firm on Falun Gong even after the persecution started in July 1999. She went to Beijing to appeal on October 11, 1999 but was detained at Anqu Detention Center for 45 days. During the detention, Su was beaten, forced labor and brainwashed. Su was arrested many times and had gong through hunger strike to protest the torture. In February 2001, Su went away from home to avoid further persecution. In August 2001, she went back to visit her parents, her husband and son but was arrested by the local police and "610" office personnel. Su Baolan was still very determined on her belief and did not cooperate with any evil's request. The police applied severe torture on her... one month later, her body was found dead at Sanhe Village, Anqu Town, Anqu City.

Related link: http://minghui.ca/mh/articles/2004/10/25/87576.html

# **39)** Falun Gong practitioner Tan Chengqiang tortured to death, sons and daughter became orphans



Falun Gong practitioner Tan Chengqiang, from Hongcheng Village, Handian Town, Shuangcheng City, Heilongjiang Province, left three kids orphaned: frist son Tan Enlong, second son Tan Enfei, and daughter Tan Yuxiu. Tan's wife, Guo Jinglan, is taking care of three kids by herself.

Tan Enlong, 16 years old, was a first grade high school student at Taolin High School, Shangcheng City; Tan Enfei, 13 years old, was an elementary school student at Hongcheng Elementary School; Tan Yuxiu, 19 years old, quit from school and staying home right now; Guo Jinglan, 39 years old, is working on a farm to support the family.

In 1995, Tan Chengqiang and his family started practice of Falun Gong. In August 1999, Tan Chengqiang went to Beijing to appeal for Falun Gong but was detained for 15 days. In October of 1999, he went to Beijing again to appeal but was forced labor for two years, he was detained at Yimianpo Labor Camp. On May 18, 2003, when he was clarifying the truth to

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

25

#### Falun Gong Persecution Report

the public, Wang Hongsheng, the village head, and Liu Hongguo, the villager reported him to the police. At 4am on May 21, the personnel from Shangcheng "610" office arrested Tan to the No. 2 Detention Center. To protest the persecution, Tan went on hunger strike but the vicious police force-fed him many times, twice in a day. At a time, a drunk doctor Zhang from No. 3 clinic came to force feed Tan, Zhang inserted the tube into Tan's lung that caused Tan to vomit large amount of blood from his month. The doctor assistant was holding a container to get the blood and the container was half full of blood. Although Tan was half fainted already, the doctor said: "he was pretending." He even asked people to pour cold water on Tan to wake him up. Tan Chengqiang was at his last breath. Tan was forced fed seven to eight times. He was sent to the emergency room when he was dying. His lung was full of water and rotted, there was no treatment to offer for him. On June 20, 2003, the personnel from Shangcheng Detention Center was afraid Tan would die in the prison, they notified the family to pick Tan up. When the family member brought Tan back home, Tan was bonny as a stick and his face was in purple. During the time when he was home, he vomit blood all the time. Eventually at 10pm on July 19, 2003, he left his wife and three kids behind and passed away.

Related link: http://minghui.ca/mh/articles/2004/10/10/86280.html

#### 40) Li Jingdong, the father of Li Linghong and Li Xinggang from Pingdu City, Shandong province, was tortured to death

Li Linghong, a 16-year old girl, is a student of Yunshan Town Central Middle School in Pingdu City, Shandong Province. Li Xinggang, a 19-year old boy, graduated from the junior middle school, and now works somewhere away from home. Li Linghong and Li Xinggang are the orphans of Falun Gong practitioner Li Jingdong, who was persecuted to death.

Before Mr. Li Jingdong learned about Falun Dafa, he had various diseases and was very thin. Because his family was so poor, his wife left him. After he started practicing Falun Dafa in 1998, all of his illnesses quickly vanished and he became a healthy person. In the fall of 2001, Mr. Li, along with his elder sister and her 15-year-old son, went to the government in Beijing to appeal on behalf of Falun Dafa. They were all illegally arrested. The police beat him with a leather belt. After being detained in Beijing for two days, he was handcuffed and sent back to the local police station in Yunshan on November 6. Mr. Li was handcuffed to a tree and left there for over 10 days and suffered from inhumane torture. In order to protest the persecution, he went on hunger strike. He endured insults, beatings and being kicked. At night he was handcuffed to the leg of the bed and was not allowed to sleep. The police shocked him with electric batons. He was tortured almost to death and then transferred to Pingdu Police Station. Not long after, he was persecuted to death, leaving behind two children and a 79-year-old mother.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/10/16/53522.html

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

26

#### 41) Falun Gong Practitioner Li Shuhua's two orphans Yang Kai and Yang Hang are being taken care of by their grandparents



Ms. Li Shuhua was a Falun Gong practitioner from Yushu City, Jilin Province. She left behind her two young sons Yang Kai and Yang Hang, who are being taken care of by their grandparents. Local practitioners have voluntarily helped them with their living expenses. Yang Kai was born in 1993 and Yang Hang in 1994. Both boys live at Zu #1, Wei #1, Peiying Street, Yushu City, Jilin Province, telephone 86-431-3693114. They both attend Yushu City Normal College Attached Primary School in Jilin Province. Yang Kai is in the 3rd Class in the 5th Grade. Yang Hang is in the 1st Class in the 4th Grade.

Their mother Li Shuhua was abducted from her home by Peiying Police Station police at around 9 a.m. on September 24, 2003. In October 2003, she was tortured to death, in less than half a month after her abduction. When her relatives saw their mother lying in the refrigerated box, they could see the obvious makeup, and her eye sockets still showed definite bruise marks. There were red spots all over her chest, back and arms. Her left eye was noticeably caved in. During her autopsy, they discovered that there were large amount of blood and liquid inside her abdomen. Other than her pants, all of her clothes were someone else's. Her feet were bare and there were no shoes or socks. It's unimaginable how much their mother had suffered from the torture.

Yang Kai and Yang Hang's father, Yang Zhanjiu, was abducted and sentenced to seven years in prison in April 2004. He is being detained at the Siping Prison in Jilin Province. Yang Kai and Yang Hang's grandmother Cui Zhanyun is 59 years old, and she started practicing Falun Gong in 1996. She was abducted six times and sentenced to a labor camp twice. The one time she was abducted to the Yushu Police Station, she was released only after suffering severe injury due to police brutality and torture. Yang Kai and Yang Hang's grandfather Li Fuchen is 60 years old. He worked as a laborer in the Yushu City Department of Environmental Protection. After his daughter Li Shuhua was tortured to death in October 2003, and while his son-in-law Yang Zhanjiu was abducted and his wife Cui Zhanyun was detained in the labor camp, he took care of his two grandchildren, and they depended on each other for living. They shed tears every day.

Related link: http://www.minghui.org/mh/articles/2004/10/6/85914.html

# 42) Liu Xinyu and Liu Minghui, the two orphans of Falun Gong practitioner Liu Dejun, are in difficult circumstances

Liu Xinyu and Liu Minghui are the two orphans of Falun Gong practitioner Mr. Liu Dejun, who, 51 years old, was a retiree from the customer department of the Xinglongtai Oil Refinery at Liaohe Oil Field of Panjin City in Liaoning Province. He was tortured to death at Panjin

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

27

City Detention Center on July 11, 2003. He left behind his wife, Ji Hong, their 5-year-old son Liu Xinyu, and a one-and-a-half-year-old daughter, Liu Minghui. Liu Xinyu and Liu Minghui's mother does not have any income to sustain her. She is living, with Liu Xinyu and Liu Minghui, at her parents' house, which locates at Dayangpu, Erbian Village, Dongfeng Farm of Dawa County in Panjin City, Liaoning Province.

In 2002, to stick to his belief in Truth-Compassion-Tolerance, Liu Xinyu and Liu Minghui's father was forced to leave home to avoid further persecution. Since September 2002, the pension of Liu Xinyu and Liu Minghui's father was cut and later the heating and electric service to his home was also disconnected. Because of this, Liu Xinyu and Liu Minghui and their mother were forced to leave their home.

On May 25, 2003, the police discovered the house that Mr. Liu had rented, and the police kidnapped him there. After he was abducted, Liu Dejun was illegally detained at Panjin City Detention Center, where he initiated a hunger strike in protest. The police had tried to brutally force-feed Liu Xinyu and Liu Minghui's father, but they failed. On July 11, Liu Xinyu and Liu Minghui's father died.

Liu Xinyu and Liu Minghui's mother said she once visited her husband at the People's First Hospital. At that time he was very weak. The Panjin City Police Department Political Protection Unit Chief Zhou Laixing wanted 20,000 yuan in cash from her for Mr. Liu's release, but since she did not have any money, they refused to release him.

Related link: http://www.minghui.org/mh/articles/2004/9/25/84978.htm

### 43) Death of Falun Gong practitioner Mr. Li Zaiji left his son Li Xin in dire circumstances



Li Xin is the son of Li Zaiji and Zu Chunrong. He is 21 years old, and currently resides at No.10 building, Qingdao Street Township, Chuanying District, Jilin City, Zip 132012. Li Xin's mother, Zu Chunrong has not been able to find steady employment. Li Xin's father, Li Zaiji, was killed at Huanxiling Forced Labor Camp in Jilin City in July 2000.

On September 5, 1999 Li Xin's father went to Beijing to appeal for Falun Gong. He was arrested in Miyun County. Later, he was detained in Huanxiling Labor Camp in Jilin City. Li Xin's father suffered various

tortures from prisoners and physical punishment and brainwashing from police, and he was also forced to do heavy labor. In July 2000, he was killed at the labor camp. On July 7, 2000, 17-year-old Li Xin saw his father's body in a warehouse of Jilin City Chinese-Western Combined Hospital, where he found his father's body covered in newspaper. Li Xin's mother made only one request: to permit Falun Gong practitioners to pay their last respects. The

> 全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

28

public security personnel denied this request, and Li Zaiji's family was put under house arrest. On July 13, before the cremation, Jilin City Public Security Bureau and many police stations detained some Falun Dafa practitioners for no reason. At 9:00am on Friday, with the tight watch of over two hundred personnel from the labor camp and Public Security Bureau, Li Zaiji's remains were cremated.

After Li Zaiji's death, Zu Chunrong was forced to raise their son alone. She has no regular income, and only earns enough to survive by doing odd jobs as a street cleaner and dishwasher. Li Xin was forced to drop out of school.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/10/23/53757p.html

#### 44) Du Juan, the orphan of Falun Gong practitioner Liang Suyun from Fushun City, Liaoning province



Du Juan, a fourteen-year old girl, lives at Room 403, Building 6, Gebuqian Street, Group Eight of the Third Commission, Under Gebu Police Station, Shuncheng District, Fushun City, Liaoning Province, China. She is a student of Class three of Grade One in Fushun City No. 41 Middle School, which locates at Jiangjun Street, Fushun City. Du Juan's father passed away from a work-related accident in 1997. Du Juan's mother, Fushun City Falun Gong practitioner Liang Suyun, died as a result of persecution on March 17, 2002. Du Juan's grandmother is taking care of her now.

Du Juan's mother, Liang Suyun, 36 years old, was an employee of the Second Corporation of the Laohutai Bureau of Mining. In 2002, Liang went to Beijing to appeal, and was abducted and taken to the Masanjia Forced Labor Camp in Shenyang City. After Liang went on hunger strike for 17 days, the people in the forced labor camp took her to the Fushun Hospital affiliated with the Petroleum Industry to force-feed her, where she was killed. To shirk responsibility, the police said Liang Suyun jumped to her death from a tall building. Ms. Lu, one of Liang Suyun's fellow practitioners, had a family member working in the police station. She said that Liang Suyun's hands were swollen as a result of being cuffed to a bed for too long. Moreover, Liang Suyun was on hunger strike for 17 days, and she was very weak. How could she get out and jump from a tall building with four police monitoring her all the time? So far, the police station has not provided any evidence or compensation for Liang Suyun's death.

Related link: http://minghui.ca/mh/articles/2004/10/10/86228.html

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

29

#### 45) Four-year-old little girl Wan Ruyi's father was persecuted to death



Wan Ruyi is a little girl born on December 31, 2000. Her father Wan Liji was persecuted to death for keep practicing Falun Gong. She is now raised by her grandma.

Wan Liji, male, 34 years old. He was a policeman from East Lake Division of Special Patrol Team in Nanchang City Police Department, Jiangxi Province. He started to practice Falun Gong in September 1997 and obtained a healthy mind and body. However, since the crackdown on Falun Gong by Jiang's regime on July 20, 1999, he had suffered long-term

persecution physically and mentally. He died at 6:40pm on February 9, 2004.

Related link: http://minghui.ca/mh/articles/2004/10/10/86233.html

#### 46) Wang Boru, Son of Shijiazhuang Falun Gong practitioner Wang Hongbin who died from torture



Wang Boru is 15 years old this year. When he was only 10 years old, on the morning of July 20, 1999, his home was broken into and his mother Feng Xiaomei and father Wang Hongbin were taken away by the police in front of his eyes because they practice Falun Gong. In the subsequent more than 50 days, no one took care of him, He had to wander about on the street and his leg caught up with a kind of boils that often oozed pus. Two years later, his father was sentenced to forced labor illegally, and in the meantime his mother couldn't come back home either due to the persecution. Once month later his mother

was on the verge of death. And then his father gradually lost his physical strength and passes away. Soon, his be-loved aunt also died.

Wang Hongbin and his wife Feng Xiaomei were practitioners from Shijiazhuang City in Hebei Province. They were college classmates and graduated together from elecommunication Engineering Department of Changchun Post and Telecommunications Institute in 1987. Since the crackdown on Falun Gong by Jiang's regime, their home has been ransacked lawlessly for five times. Wang Hongbin had been arrested, beaten up, tortured and sent to forced labor. He was persecuted to death on October 9, 2003, at the age of 39 when his son was only 13 years old. His wife's younger sister Feng Xiaomin was also persecuted to death for practicing Falun Gong at the age of 34.

Related link: http://minghui.ca/mh/articles/2004/10/13/86532.html

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

30

#### 47) Falun Gong practitioner Wang Huazhen was burned to death, left two little sons motherless



Feng Hao is a boy born in March 1993 and his elder brother Feng Jun was born on May 22, 1990. Their mother Ms. Wang Huazhen was persecuted to death for practicing Falun Gong. They are raised now by their father's sister Feng Xianzhi. Because their aunt has two kids of her own, their living condition and financial situation are quite difficult.

Wang Huazhen was a female practitioner from Macheng City of Hubei Province. She died at the age of 36. On April 18, 2001, the evil police beat her up violently until she had only the lastbreath, then they dragged

her in front of city hall, dripped gasoline on her body and burned heralive. However, the Macheng City official frame her by claiming that she died from "self-immolation".

Related link: http://minghui.ca/mh/articles/2004/10/18/86846.html

### 48) Five-year-old girl orphaned when mother Zhao Shuhong died from persecution of Falun Gong

Du Yuxin, female, 5 years old, lives in Harbin City. When her mother died from persecution of Falun Gong, little Yuxin just turned four years old. Both of her mother and father already started practicing Falun Gong when Yuxin was a fetus.

Duxin's mother, Ms. Zhao Shuhong, was employed at the Xingye Constructional Material Store. She started practicing Falun Gong in July 1998. In winter of 2000, she went to Beijing to appeal for Falun Gong, but was arrested and imprisoned in a county detention center in Beijing. Later she returned home and continued to do truth-clarification work. On March 5, 2003, Zhao Shuhong and another female practitioner were at home. The police tried all means to abduct the two practitioners trapped inside. They even employed fire trucks. However, the two practitioners refused to cooperate with the police officers at all times. After a 7-hour stalemate, the police broke into the room at about 4:00 p.m. In order to avoid arrest and torture, the two practitioners attempted to escape their illegal arrest by jumping out of the building. Unfortunately, Zhao Shuhong died on the spot and Lei Mei was severely injured. Zhao Shuhong was only 28 years old at that time.

Yuxin's father, Mr. Du Qingjun is now 33 years old. He was also employed at the Xingye Constructional Material Store. He started practicing Falun Gong in May 1996. He was arrested in winter of 2000 when he went to Beijing to appeal for Falun gong. After a few days of detention at a county detention center in Beijing, he was sent back to the Daowai Police Substation in Harbin City where he was detained for more than 20 days. After he was released, he continued to clarify the facts about Falun Gong. On March 5, 2003, he was abducted by 20 police officers on his way to work. He was first sent to the Daowai Police Station in Harbin

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会

**Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners** 

31

City and then imprisoned in the 7th Department of the Harbin Municipal Police Station where he was subjected to various tortures. Later, he was transferred to the Daowai Public Security Bureau. He did not disclose any information about his fellow practitioners. In the end of 2003, the Daowai Procuratorate tried several times to sentence him but was rejected by the court because of the lack of evidence. Later, the Daowai Procuratorate fabricated some false evidence against Du Qingjun and sent them to the court. In February 2004, the court sentenced Du Qingjun 8 years in prison based on the fabricated false evidence. At present, Du Qingjun is detained in the Hulan Prison in Harbin City and is subjected to persecution.

Related Link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2003/3/25/33754.html

### 49) Falun Gong practitioner Zhang Haiyan was tortured to death and her semi-orphaned son has to quit school to make living

Wang Defu, male, was born on October 19, 1992. When he was 9 year old, his mother Ms. Zhang Haiyan, who started to practice Falun Gong in 1996, went to Beijing to appeal for the justice of Falun Gong. She was arrested and eventually sent to Masanjia Labor Camp where she suffered inhuman torture. In March, 2003, she was sent home completely mental disordered. During the 10 months she was home, she never dared to speak to anyone, including her husband and child. Her family members never dared to talk to her loudly, because they didn't want to scare her. Even if it was just a child yelling nearby, she would be frightened to the point that her face became pale and she shivered all over. On January 18, 2004, she passed away.

After that, Defu's family which was already broken apart and lost its usual warm is now suffering the new pain. Defu was originally a smart and sensible child and his academic record was very good. After his mother passed away, and seeing his family members extremely worried, he does not have the thought or patience to study again. His grandfather sighed, "If he does not want to go to school, just let him be as we are unable to afford his education anyway." His grandfather is disabled and has only one hand. His grandmother suffers from severe chronic disease. Because of severe financial difficulty, little Defu has quitted from school and now is helping his farther to support the family. The once fatty and happy boy is now very skinny and he is much smaller than other children of his age.

Related link http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/4/27/47448p.html

#### 50) Falun Gong practitioner Zhang Zhibin murdered at the Kaiping forced Labor Camp, left behind teenager daughter and son

Wang Yujin, female, 16 years old, Wang Yudian, male, 10 years old, daughter and son of Zhang Zhibin. Zhang Zhibin was a practitioner living in Qinglong Man Ethnicity Autonomous Administrative County in Qinhuangdao City, Hebei Province. She was murdered

> 全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

32
on December 18, 2000 at the Kaiping Labor Camp in Tangshan City. The guards falsely claimed the cause of her death to be suicide, and coerced her family to go along with it. Her teenager daughter Wang Yujin and son Wang Yudian are left semi-orphaned.

Wang Yujin, was born on March 7, 1988. She studied at the First High School at the Qinglong Man Ethnicity Autonomous Administrative County. She was in the 10th grade, class #17. She was an outstanding student both in academics and in conduct.

Wang Yudian, was born on November 25, 1994. He studied at the First Experimental Elementary School at the Qinglong Man Ethnicity Autonomous Administrative County. He was in the 5th grade. He was also a top student at the school..

Yujin and Yudian's mother, Ms. Zhang Zhibin, 32, worked at the Bureau of Commerce in Qinglong County. She started practicing Falun Gong in 1998. After the Jiang regime started persecuting Falun Gong practitioners on July 20, 1999, she went to Beijing to appeal against the persecution and righteously clarified the truth. She was abducted and taken to the Qinglong County Detention Center four times. She was then transferred to the Kaiping Labor Camp without any due process of law. She died on December 18, 2000 after being subjected to repeated torture in the labor camp.

Related Link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/10/21/53684.html

### 51) Falun Gong practitioner Xuan Honggui died as a result of the persecution, left daughter Zhao Lin behind

Zhao Lin, female, 16 years old, is the daughter of practitioner Xuan Honggui. She is 16 years old and a "secondary three student" in class No.1 in Hailong Town's No.4 Secondary School in Meihekou City, Jilin Province. Zhao Lin presently lives with her grandmother Ms. Xu Xianlan .

Zhao Lin's mother, Falun Gong practitioner Xuan Honggui, started cultivating Falun Gong in the spring of 1998. She was reported to the authorities on December 7, 2001, was arrested and sent to the local Tiebei Detention Center. Officials from the Meihekou City Police Department, in conspiracy with the Hailong Town Police, are responsible for her arrest. Ms. Xuan was sent to the Heizuizi Women's Forced Labor Camp in Changchun City to be further abused and mistreated until she was on the brink of death. Her family members were then notified to take her home. She died as a result of the persecution.

Related Link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/10/19/53599.html

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

33

#### 52) I have lost my mommy, I can not lose my daddy



Zhao Yuanming, female, is 6 years old now. Her father, Falun Gong practitioner Zhao Yougang, also called Zhao Jianshe is 32 years old. In 2001, because he persisted in practicing Falun Dafa, the Weifang City government forced him to leave his job and his home in order to avoid being arrested under the unconstitutional ban on Falun Gong. Even so, in June of 2003 Zhao Yougang was arrested by the Nanjing police while he was composing materials to tell people about Falun Gong. In jail he has been constantly subjected to inhumane torture. On December 29, 2003, Zhao was illegally sentenced to nine years in prison. He is now being detained in Wuxi Prison and is suffering brutal treatment. To protest the persecution, Zhao has been on a hunger strike since June, the

time of his arrest. Zhao is being painfully force-fed seven to eight times every night by the prison guards. Currently he is so extremely weak that he cannot stand upright by himself.

Yuanming's mother passed away from illness when Yuanming was only three months old. Yuanming is being raised by both sets of grandparents. Zhao Yougang misses his daughter very much. During the time he was homeless, he frequently traveled back home for a quick glimpse of his daughter. Each time little Yuanming saw her father, she was overjoyed. Little Yuanming went to Wuxi Prison hospital with her maternal grandmother to see her dad, who has become now virtually unrecognizable due to the torture. Seeing her now-emaciated and profoundly altered father, little Yuanming became so bewildered that she could only stare at him wide-eyed. Even though Yuanming is young, she can still understand, "I have already lost my mommy, I cannot lose my daddy."

Related Link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/10/16/53516.html

### 53) Fourteen-year-old girl Sun Yubo is orphaned after her parents were killed as a result of the persecution

Sun Yubo, female, 14 year-old. Yubo's father, Mr. Sun Jihong was 40 years old and worked in the Huanan Forestry Company's Xianfeng site in Heilongjiang Province. Because Sun Jihong would not renounce his belief in the principles of Truthfulness, Compassion and Tolerance, he was illegally detained for 15 days in November 1999. He was put on strict surveillance after being released, which greatly restricted his personal freedom. In addition, he was forced to go to the police station twice a day to sign in. Then in July 2000 he was arrested again for not going along with the police's unreasonable requirementsOn September 25th. 2001, he was again illegally arrested and detained in Beijing at the Yuquanying area in Fengtai District. Four days later, on September 29th, he was subjected to a round of excruciating torture and died. On October 2, his body was cremated.

> 全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

34

Sun Yubo's mother Ms. Yuan Hezhen was 41 years old and had learned Falun Dafa in in 1994. She worked in the Huanan Forestry Company's Xianfeng site in Heilongjiang Province as a bank director. When the persecution began on July 20, 1999, because Yuan Hezhen persisted in practicing, she was illegally detained for 15 days in November of 1999. Then she was arrested in Beijing in May of 2002. In the detention center, she suffered fierce group beatings, had her hands handcuffed behind her back, went through force-feeding and other cruel tortures. She spit up blood and had blood in her feces, and her body was in a state of extreme weakness. Later, with the use of righteous thoughts she managed to escape. However, through the course of her imprisonment, her body suffered serious damage. She had to live in different places and had no stable roof over her head. Her physical condition worsened every day until she passed away in July 2003.

Sun Jihong and Yuan Hezhen left behind a 14-year-old daughter, as well as Sun Jihong's elderly grandfather and widowed mother.

Related Link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/10/18/53573.html

### 54) Falun Gong practitioner Liu Liyun died from persecution in Dabei Prison, and left behind 21-year-old junior Hu Yang

Falun Gong practitioner Ms. Liu Liyun from Huludao City, Liaoning Province died from persecution in Dabei Prison in 2002, and left behind her 21-year-old son, Hu Yang, a junior student in college.

Hu Yang, male, was born on August 9, 1983. He is currently a junior student of Department of Arts, Yingkou Univeristy. His mother Ms. Liu Liyun was tortured to death. His father, Mr. Hu Baochun, also a practitioner of Falun Gong, is forced to leave home to avoid being arrested. Hu Baochun, 49 years old has been unlawfully sentenced to forced labor camp four times. On April 1, 2004, Hu Baochun was once again abducted on a street in Ruizhong and sent to Huludao Forced Labor Camp. After going on hunger strike for more than 100 days and he was at the verge of death, he was released.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2002/9/14/26498.html

### 55) Falun Gong practitioner Ms. Li Jiju was tortured to death, survived her son Zhu Li

Zhu Li (nickname Yang Yang), male, is 15 years old. Zhu Li 's mother, Falun Gong practitioner Ms. Li Jiju in Macheng City, Hubei Province was tortured to death by police on May 20, 2002 during the interrogation in Longchi Police Station .

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

35

#### Falun Gong Persecution Report

His mother was tortured to death and his father is often out of town for work reasons, so he transferred from his school in Macheng City to Baiguo Town Middle School to live with grandparents. Because his grandparents were in poor health, his father and stepmother took him to Qingdao City, Shandong Province in the summer of 2004. He is currently attending school in Qingdao City.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/10/20/53640p.html

### 56) Tian Ge, daughter of Tian Yili and Zhen Yujie, orphaned due to the persecution



Tian Ge, female, 11 year old. Daughter of Falun Dafa practitioners Mr. Tian Yili and his wife Zhen Yujie.

Tian Ge's father Tian Yili was 32 years old when he tortured to death in 2002. Her mother Zhen Yujie was 28 years old when she persecuted to death in 1999. They lived in Gacha Village, Lianhe Township, Chaoyang County, Liaoning Province. Tian Ge now lives in Yinmachi Village, Xidayingzi Town, Chaoyang City, Liaoning Province with her

Aunt Tian Hua and Uncle Wang Shukui. She attends Yinmachi Village Elementary School, as a 4th grader.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/10/22/53708p.html

# 57) Current status of Falun Gong practitioner Zhang Qifa's surviving daughter Zhang Qi



Zhang Qi, female, 15 years old, is the daughter of Falun Gong practitioner Zhang Qifa.

Zhang Qifa worked for the Sanchazi Forest Farm in Jiangyuan County Forestry Bureau in Baishan City, Jilin Province. On January 19, 2003, he died as a result of torture at the Chaoyanggou Forced Labor Camp in Changchun City, Jilin Province. Zhang Qifa's father Zhang Quanfu died from beating torture at the same labor camp on January 8, 2003. The two

men left behind their daughter and granddaughter.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/10/23/53749p.html

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

36

### 58) Twelve-year-old child's mother died in the persecution, father sentenced to four years in prison

Zhou Yingjie, female, 12 years old, now lives with her grandmother Li Junfang. Her mother died from persecution and her father was sentenced to four years in prison.

Yingjie's mother, Zhu Meijuan was 38 years old when she died as a result of the persecution. She was a worker in the Boiler Metal Configuration Factory of Qingdao City and started to practice Falun Gong in spring 1996 at Erlihe, Jiaozhou City. She was fired from her job for practicing Falun Gong. In October 2000, she went to Beijing to appeal and validate Dafa. In December 2001, her husband Zhou Zhaohua was arrested.

Over the past few years, she has been dedicated in clarifying the truth to people. As she handed out truth-clarifying materials, she was followed by plainclothes policemen. At 5:00 a.m. on Sunday, March 14, 2004, five people from the Jiaozhou City Police Department and the "610 Office" shouted and smashed the door, attempting to forcibly bring Zhu to the police department for interrogation. She clarified the truth to them, but they kept at the door for over two hours and attempted to arrest her. Zhu sought a way to escape, so she climbed down the drainpipe from the sixth floor. When she reached the third floor, the pipe broke, and Zhu fell to her death.

Yingjie's father, Zhou Zhaohua, is 40 year old. He was once a captain in the military. In 1998 he was transferred to civilian work and stayed in Yanghe Town Government of Jiaozhou City as an assistant engineer. In spring 1996, he started to practice Falun Gong at Erlihe of Jiaozhou City. At the end of December 2001, he was abducted while at work for handing out truth-clarifying materials. Zhou Zhaohua was later illegally sentenced to four years in Weibei Prison by a Jiaozhou City Court.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/10/9/53310.html

### 59) Falun Gong practitioner Zuo Shuchun died of force-feeding, and her son Dong Wei was orphaned

Dong Wei, 19-year-old orphan lives at Changsha City.

Dong Wei's father passed away long time ago. He and his mother depended on each other. Since his mother, 42-year-old Falun Gong practitioner Zuo Shuchuan died from persecution in March, 2001 in Baimalong Women Labor Camp of Zhuzhou city, Dong Wei has to live with his grandmother who has a total pension of ~620 yuan/month (~\$75) and is also raising Dong's young cousin. The broken family now is in great financial problem, and Dong Wei still has not found the money to pay his college tuition.

> 全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

37

### Falun Gong Persecution Report

Zuo shunchun started to practice Falun Dafa in 1997, and she was arrested when she was distributing Falun Dafa truth-clarifying materials on streets in April 2000. Ms. Zuo was then illegally sent to Baimalong Women Labor Camp of Zhuzhou city. Despite the severe torture she was inflicted upon, Zuo was very firm in the belief of Falun Dafa. Consequently, the labor camp authority conducted force-feeding to further torture her. She was suffocated to death during the force-feeding process. To cover the truth, the labor camp tightly blocked the news of her death and secretly removed her body which was covered with a white cloth. When caught by other practitioners at the crime site, the guards even refused to acknowledge their crime and attack the practitioners for lying. Today, Ms. Zuo's family still doesn't know the truth of her death and no one from the authority has ever told them the truth.

Related link: http://www.minghui.org/mh/articles/2004/10/6/85912.html

#### 60) Orphaned teen became a fugitive as parents died from torture



Liu Xiaotian was born in December of 1985. His family lived in Yongzhou City, Hunan Province, China. His father was Liu Qing, an official of the Zhishan Town Government in Yongzhou City. His mother was Yang Yuyan, who used to be employed by the Shanghe Town Textile Factory of Lengshuitan District. They began to practice Falun Gong and follow its principles"Truth-Compassion-Forbearance" since the beginning of 1999.

Liu Xiaotian was boarding in the middle school and only came back home once a week when the persecution of Falun Gong started in July, 1999. He saw his parents practicing Falun Gong, but he didn't really know much about it.

On November 23, 2001, a Friday, Liu Xiaotian was in the classroom. Police came to his school and told his teacher that his parents were detained. They asked for him. A classmate overheard it and ran to tell him that his parents were in trouble and the police wanted him. Hearing that, Liu Xiaotian quivered with fear. He ran out of the school without taking anything. He hid in the storage room of his neighbor for the night. Around midnight, he snuck across the road to check out his home. He saw that the windows of his home were smashed, and so was the furniture inside. His neighbor saw him and asked him to stay at his place. However, two or three days later, the police went to the neighbor' place, telling them that if they saw Liu Xiaotian and didn't report to the police, they would be punished. The neighbor had no way out but to give him some money and sent him to his only relative, an uncle who is a farmer in Fujian Province.

After a long and hard journey, he finally reached his uncle's place. His legs were injured and he had a big scar on the neck. Five or six months later, one day in May of 2002, the local police came to his uncle's home. Liu Xiaotian immediately hid. He didn't know what the police said to his uncle, but after the police left, his uncle became very quiet. During that

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

38

night, his uncle asked a friend to send him to Shenzhen, a city that is close to Hong Kong. He hid in a huge warehouse filled with piles of sacks. He dared not speak to anyone and thus spent a year in fear, anxiety, and suffered from depression.

In June of 2003, his uncle, who did not have an easy life, borrowed a lot of money to pay smugglers to get Liu outside China. On July 1, 2003, Liu Xiaotian arrived in Denmark. Regrettably, several hours later, the smuggler took him to the Copenhagen railway station and left. Having experienced so many threats and deceptions, Liu Xiaotian became very fearful. He quivered at the sight of the police. An old Chinese lady took him to a refugee camp. Deeply frightened, he couldn't speak properly, nor could he fill out forms. He was mostly afraid of being sent back to China and put in the hands of the Chinese police.

With the help of the staff in the refugee camp, Liu Xiaotian got into contact with Denmark Falun Gong practitioners and stayed with them till today.

While he was recovering, Liu Xiaotian started to think about his parents. He missed them very much. Later his uncle, who still lives in China, told him for the first time that his parents had died in April 2002 from torture, five months after they were detained. No one knows exactly what happened, or where they died. He also told Liu Xiaotian that in May of 2002 the local police visited him, and informed him of the death of Liu Xiaotian's parents. They refused to tell him any details. He dared not ask anything, either, after he heard the police say the word "suicide." The police also demanded that he report Liu Xiaotian's whereabouts and threatened that their entire family would be punished, should they go against this directive. His uncle was deeply frightened. Therefore, he sent Liu Xiaotian that very night to the warehouse in Shenzhen and later sent him abroad by borrowing a huge amount of money, a debt that he could not pay off until now.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/8/21/51602p.html

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

### **Chapter Three**

### Cases of Children Being Persecuted For Practicing Falun Gong

# 1) Wang Zhe, a high school student from Liaoning province, is expelled for exposing the persecution of Falun Gong

On February 18, 2004, student Wang Zhe from the No. 1 Senior High School in Changtu County, Liaoning Province clarified the truth of Falun Gong. He explained to the teachers at the school the slandering of Falun Dafa practitioners by the director of the political and education department and was subsequently expelled from school. On April 6, Wang Zhe and his mother went to the school, requesting that Wang Zhe be re-admitted in accordance with the law; the school headmaster, Sun Yuhui, reported this to the police. After the report, the county's deputy party secretary and several members of the national security section arrested Wang Zhe and incarcerated him in a county detention center.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/5/16/48161.html

### 2) Ai Dan, junior high school student in Chenzhou city, is deprived of her education for promoting "Truthfulness-Compassion-Tolerance"

Ai Dan, a 14-year-old girl, was a student in the eighth grade at Heyeping High School in the Suxian District, Chenzhou City, Hunan Province. She started practicing Falun Gong in 1998, was strict with herself and her character improved very quickly.

In order to encourage people to follow "Truthfulness-Compassion-Tolerance", Ai Dan began to promote Falun Gong to the teachers and students. By the second semester in 2001, some of her classmates wanted to practice Falun Gong and were reading Zhuan Falun. One of the classmates who did not know the truth about FalunGong reported her, which was further reported to the district's "610 Office". Ai Dan's Zhuan Falun book was confiscated. Moreover, Ai Dan and the other students were forced to write the so-called "Guarantee Statements", declaring that they were remorseful for practicing Falun Gong, guaranteeing not to practice Falun Gong again, and promising not to go to Beijing to appeal for Falun Gong, or to ever again associate with any Falun Gong practitioners. Several days later, Ai Dan went back to the school and submitted a declaration to the headmaster, stating her determination to practice Falun Gong. Ai Dan was then expelled from school.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/5/16/48161.html

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

40

#### 3) Zhang Conghui, high school student was expelled and jailed

Ms. Zhang Conghui, an 18-year-old student at the Xuanhua First High School in Chicheng County, Hebei Province, was "urged to drop out," simply because she wrote a note to a boy saying, "Please remember Falun Gong is great." On February 24, 2004, Ms. Zhang went to Beijing to appeal for Falun Gong and was arrested and sent to jail. She was then taken to a brainwashing class in Zhangjiakou City. The authorities threatened to send her to a forced labor camp, which caused her family a great deal of anxiety.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/5/16/48161.html

### 4) Wang Lin, a middle school student was arrested for answering an exam question truthfully

Ms. Wang Lin, a 17-year-old middle school student, lived in Machang, Suileng County, Heilongjiang Province. In July 2002, Wang Lin participated in a joint entrance exam for a provincial high school. The exam's political section contained a question defaming Falun Gong. Wang Lin answered the question truthfully stating, "Falun Gong is great," and "Falun Gong is righteous." Later, officials from the Political and Judiciary Committee, the police department and from the Provincial Education Committee came to arrest her. Wang went into exile to avoid further persecution. Unfortunately, her parents were falsely arrested and beaten by personnel from the "610 Office".

In May 2003, Wang Lin was working in Harbin City when she was seized by police and detained in Suileng. The "610 Office" administrator in in Suileng County gave personal orders to detain her until she reaches legal age, then to sentence her.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/5/16/48161.html

### 5) Huang Jing, a junior high school student, was expelled from school for practicing Falun Gong

Huang Jing, a second-year junior high school student at the Yucai Middle School, Chengdu City, was reported by a classmate for clarifying the truth about Falun Gong to students in the school. The school's Political Section tried to force Huang Jing to give up Falun Gong practice, but Huang Jing would not give in because she firmly believes Falun Gong to be a righteous practice that teaches people to be good. This past semester, Jing once again clarified the truth about Falun Gong to her schoolmates, but the school authorities forced her to terminate her studies. Now Huang Jing has to look for a school willing to accept her.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/5/16/48161.html

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

41

#### 6) Chen Si, a 13-year-old girl, was arrested and tortured for handing out Falun Gong truth-clarification materials

Falun Gong practitioner Chen Si is only 13 years old. She is a student in Junior High School and lives in the Dongfeng Chemistry Factory residential area, Shuangbei, Shapingba District, Chongqing City. Both her parents are Falun Gong practitioners. Her mother had been illegally sent to a forced labor camp for going to Beijing to appeal for Falun Gong.

During her 2001 summer vacation, Chen Si went to hand out Falun Gong truth-clarification information and was arrested. Despite her young age, policemen still kicked and punched her. Chen Si was then sent to the Gele Mountain Brainwashing Center in the Shapingba District.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/5/16/48161.html

### 7) A 16-year old minor was faced brutal torture

The police arrested a 16 years old practitioner on September 30, 2001.

The police initially locked her up in a room slapped her numerous times, pulled her hair and knocked her unto the floor. The female practitioner refused to answer to the interrogation and was slapped left and right. The police station director and the Party secretary joined the room and participated in the brutality. The police kicked her many times on her hands, legs and chin with leather boots. Finally a policeman shocked her left hand and her neck with an electric baton. She lost control of the bladder and wet her pants with urine and blood (she was on her period). Finally the police sent her to a detention center.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2001/12/12/16741p.html

### 8) A 15-year old minor was tortured and her family heavily fined

Name unknown, female, 15 years old middle school student. She unfurled a Falun Gong banner in Tiananmen Square on September 6, 2001. The policemen arrested her and threatened her. The policemen blindfolded her, cuffed her hands behind her back and stepped on her neck. The policemen then tied her up and shocked her with an electric baton on her sensitive parts. When the baton ran out of battery, the cops recharged and shocked her again until it ran out again; this went on for 3 or 4 cycles. They increased the batons to 2 and continued the shocking. A policeman later trampled on her throat and nearly killing her.

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

42

The policemen extorted 3,100 Yuan from her parents (her parents make about 2,800 Yuan a year). The jail wouldn't take her in because her body was severely injured; they were afraid that she might die in the jail.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2001/12/3/16462.html

### 9) Two 17-year-old high school students were forced to leave school and home for refusing to slander Falun Gong

Two name unknown, female, 17 years old high school students. In June, 2001, the girls were going to take the general exam. Before the exam, the teacher and the school administrator talked to this student and another young Falun Gong practitioner of same age and told them that there would almost certainly be questions about Falun Gong. They asked those two students to answer those questions according to the official propaganda. Both of them refused to do so and told the teachers and administrators about their personal beneficial experience of practicing Falun Gong. On the day of the exam, there was a question asking the student to talk about their own thoughts about Falun Gong based on the media coverage of "Tiananmen Self-Immolation" incident. The two students answered the questions with their honest thoughts. But their honest answer enraged the county's education committee. The communist party chief Yao of the county education committee talked to the students twice and was very angry for their honest answer. Later the authority issued orders to send those two students to the forced labor camp. To avoid the persecution in labor camp, the two students were forced to leave home and school and become homeless. However, the parents of the students are also Falun Gong practitioners. The head of the parents' working unit (a farm) Dong Xiquan and Wang Jiubin tried to force the parents to hand over the students. Wang beat one of the mothers and Dong had beaten one of the fathers. The police also threatened the parents to detain them if they refused to hand over the children. The parents were then also forced to leave home and become homeless since September 3, 2001.

Related link: http://search.minghui.org/mh/articles/2001/12/30/22288.html

### 10) Enduring all kinds of brutal tortures, I still didn't write a single word against Falun Gong

I am a 16-year-old middle school student. Falun Dafa taught me the true meaning of life. After July 22nd, 1999, I used various ways to clarify the truth about Falun Gong to many people. In October 2000 I went to Beijing to appeal for Falun Gong, and I was arrested and detained in No. 2 Detention Center. Because I refused to write "guarantee letter," "repentance letter" or other statements through my detention, I was illegally detained for almost 10 months. During my illegal detention, I went on a hunger strike four times to protest the persecution of Dafa and Dafa practitioners and verify that Teacher is innocent and Dafa practitioners are innocent. Thus I was force-fed through the nose. Because I kept practicing the exercises and

> 全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

43

sent forth righteous thoughts, the cruel police shocked me with electric batons on my head, face, mouth, neck, chest, the inside of both arms, armpits, thighs and back. One time the Chief of the City Police Department personally came to force me to give up my belief. He said, "If you say, 'I won't practice any more,' I'll release you right now." I said only one sentence to him, "I'll practice Falun Dafa through to the end!"

As a Dafa practitioner, my heart is filled with "Truthfulness, Compassion, and Tolerance." I do not have any enemies nor do I have any hatred. I am willing to give all that I have to awaken people who have been deluded by the monstrous lies and propaganda fabricated by the media, to awake their righteous thoughts about Dafa.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2001/12/20/16953.html

### 11) 15-year-old Han Tianzi suffered electric baton shock in Shenyang City Longshan Labor Camp

A 15-year-old girl named Han Tianzi was brought into Shenyang City Longshan Labor Camp. The police took the girl to the office and asked her to write a pledge. Tianzi refused, and the police then threatened her with electric batons. They also forced her to squat down in the office and said that she would be sent to reform school, where juvenile delinquents are detained. Tianzi was not scared, and she said, "Falun Dafa is the righteous Fa. Restore my Master's reputation. Release all the detained Dafa practitioners unconditionally, as they have not committed any crimes and only try to be good people." At that time another Falun Gong practitioner was being interrogated in the same office. He thought that this girl cultivated very well, coming to Beijing to validate Dafa by herself. In subsequent repeated interrogations, the girl remained resolute. When the police found that threats were useless, they started to use electric batons to shock her.

The Falun Gong practitioners in other cells could hear the child's cries of pain as well as a policeman yelling, "Will you write the pledge or not?! Write a pledge, and you can go home!" The child said, "I am protected by laws that safeguard minors, you are not allowed to beat me." But the policeman had already lost his sense of humanity and continued to shock the girl for 3 to 4 hours until his shift ended. The policeman told the girl that he would shock her again when he came to work the next day. The whole body of the girl was covered with the wounds caused by the shocks. When other Falun Gong practitioners saw her wounds, many of them cried.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2001/12/24/17088.html

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

44

### 12) A young girl, whose name was unknown, was illegally detained and went on prolonged hunger strike

A young girl, whose name was unknown, was illegally arrested and detained in Pinggu County Police Subdivision on November 8, 2001 for appealing in Beijing. She went on hunger strike for at least 4 days while requesting an unconditional release. Because she refused to disclose her identity to prevent her family from being involved in this illegal persecution, she suffered from interrogation and cruel punishments. The police refused to release her even though she was very weak after hunger strike and suffered from cold. They threatened to detain her indefinitely unless she could be identified.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2001/11/14/15744.html

# 13) Li Mingwei, a middle school student, was persecuted for his belief in Falun Gong

Li Mingwei, a student in Anqiu City Experimental Middle School, Shandong Province, was persecuted by Jiang Dongbo, head of the politics education section of the school, under instructions of Principal Xia Fangjing and Deputy Principal Sun Xifu.

In July 2001, Li Mingwei went to Beijing to legally appeal but was forcefully sent back and detained for the whole summer break. He was not released until he started a one-day hunger strike. Jiang Dongbo repeatedly physically abused Li, deprived Li's right to attend class, tricked and even bribed Li to force him to write a so-called "guarantee statement" to give up practicing Falun Gong. During a politics exam, Li answered a question designed to smear Dafa with a truthful answer. The school authority treated it as a political incident and threatened to revoke his membership from the Youth League. Once Li left for home in the evening from his school dormitory. Jiang went to Li's home at mid-night to ensure he was at home. On the next day, Li was called to the office, verbally attacked by a group of teachers and had to miss 3 classes. Jiang slapped Li on the face more than a dozen times, and Li felt the pain for a long time afterwards.

One early morning when Li was still in bed, seven or eight people broke into his home and took him and his mother to the city's family planning office, leaving his 12-year-old sister home alone and helpless (his father had escaped long ago and was not caught).

After a 5-day hunger strike in the family planning office, Li was brought back to his school for extended detention. Li continued his hunger strike. The City Education Committee head Wei ordered to drag him to the People's Hospital to undergo force-feeding. The hospital staff injected him with an unknown drug, which made Li numb all over his body for a long time even after the forced-feeding. As the tube was too thick to be inserted through his nostrils, they used a hard object to pry open his mouth causing severe bleeding of his mouth. The school then locked up Li in a small room and disallowed him to attend classes unless he

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

promised never to go to Beijing to appeal. Teachers and students were assigned to watch him around the clock. The school kept sending someone to brainwash him with crooked theories and cruelly tortured him mentally.

As of November 2001, Li Mingwei was forced to wander out of his home for more than 6 months.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2001/11/29/16273.html

#### 14) Liu Wenwen and Liu Lulu, teenage girls, were tortured in Heizuizi Labor Camp

Liu Wenwen and Liu Lulu were two 16-year-old twin sisters living in Yanji City, Jilin Province. In April 2001, they were detained at Heizuizi Women Labor Camp in Changchun, Jilin Province for going to Beijing to appeal for Falun Gong. The guards in the labor camp punched and kicked them, and tortured them with electric batons. As of November 2001, both girls were still being detained separately at the First and the Seventh Section in the labor camp.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2001/11/2/15341.html

#### 15) A young student can not attend school because of the persecution

Both Li Feng's parents are Falun Gong practitioners. On December 29, 1999, Li Feng's mother was detained to 45 days' detention. Li Feng's father was also jailed for 45 days. He was left home alone during those days.

When Li Feng was at the class in school, a local policeman summoned him to the principal's office and attempted to "transform" him. He told them firmly that he would continue to practice Falun Dafa. After school was over that afternoon, they came to Li Feng's home to question him again. Seeing that he was determined not to write anything, they said, "You must think about this seriously: practice (Falun Gong) or go to school. If you want to go to school, you must write the statement tonight and turn it in to school tomorrow. Otherwise, you will not be allowed to go to school any more." On June 29, 2000, police came to Li Feng's home again and carried Li Feng's Dad forcefully out to a waiting police car. Li Feng and his mother had to leave home to avoid further persecution. Li Feng and his mother are still wandering about since they left home.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2001/5/18/10170.html

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

46

#### 16) A 15-year-old's story of her release after a five-day hunger strike

Name unknown, female, 15 years old. On Nov. 8, 2001, she was arrested at Tiananmen Square for her appeal of Falun Gong, and was sent to a brainwashing class in the Pinggu County Law Enforcement Education School. Wang Wei, the man in charge of the brainwashing ordered her to stand for a long time. Still weak from her hunger strike, she started to breath heavily and could not straighten my back. When she coughed, she bent over almost to the ground. Then Wong Hongjing, head of the Pinggu County "610" Office and others began the brainwashing session. In the evenings she was forced to watch slanderous videos about Falun Dafa.

On the 12th, a secret agent named Wu Xianquan was trying to brainwash her and in the morning the head of the "610" Office, Wong Hongjing and the Deputy Principal of the Law Enforcement Education School came to ask for her name and address. She adamantly refused to tell them. Finally, she was released under the rescuing pressure all around the world.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2001/12/5/16461.html

#### 17) Junjun, a ten-year-old from Zhoukou city, Henan province is kidnapped by the public security department

Junjun, female, 10 years old, is from Zhoukou City, Henan Province. In August 2001, Junjun and two other fellow practitioners were arrested at a Falun Dafa material site, and nobody knows their whereabouts.

Junjun comes from a family of Falun Gong practitioners. Unfortunately, her family members have been unjustly persecuted for practicing Falun Gong. Her father is a retired doctor from an army hospital who was unjustly sentenced to a labor camp simply. Her mother was once wanted and then illegally detained by the police. Her sister, a college student in Beijing, was detained for going to Beijing to validate Falun Dafa. As a result, Junjun had to live on her own. Yet, the police still went to her school to harass her, therefore, she had no choice but to suspend her schooling. But, the police did not stop harassing her. Nevertheless, she frequently distributed Falun Gong materials with fellow practitioners.

There is evidence which revealed that the people who took part in kidnapping Junjun drove a white car. The license plate of the car is Yu (another name for Henan Province) 033730, the car belongs to the public security department.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2001/10/11/14614.html

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

47

### 18) Ten-year-old Falun Gong practitioner Zhouzhou was arrested, hung by his hands and beaten

In October 2000, ten-year-old Zhouzhou was arrested by the police along with over ten other Falun Gong practitioners. Police interrogated him for his parents' whereabouts and hung him up by his hands and beat him, while yelling that they would kill him by splitting him in two. His trousers were torn, but he did not yield.

Zhoushou's parents were forced to leave home with their ten-year-old son. They were on the police's wanted list for practicing Falun Gong. The police offer a reward of 60,000 Yuan RMB (US \$7,200) [approximately ten-year's income of an average urban worker] for information leading to their whereabouts.

Around Spring Festival (January 24, 2001), Zhouzhou's mother was arrested again. His mother walked out of the detention center 5 days later.

In the early morning of July 13, 2001, police broke into the place where Zhouzhou and his parents were living and took them all away. However, Zhouzhou walked out of the detention center. His parents are still being illegally detained.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2001/9/18/13967.html

### 19) A nine-month-old baby's bitter experiences in Changzhou city, Jiangsu province

Wu Rong, the nine-month-old infant son of Wu Dianhui and Zhang Wuying, had been the victim of the persecution since he was still in his mother's womb, simply because his parents practiced Falun Gong.

Before Rong's birth, his parents were forced to give up their teaching positions because of their appeals for Falun Gong. His father was forced to clean restrooms and do logging work. His expectant mother was forced to do copying work in polluted surroundings with toxic fumes. The police authorities from Cuizhu Station often detained the pregnant woman and forced her to stand throughout the entire night.

In April 2000, Rong's mother was beaten up by policemen when the couple went to Beijing to appeal for Falun Gong. She was four month pregnant at the time. The couple was sent to a mental hospital while the expectant mother was tied onto a bed, injected her with unknown substances and force-feed her other drugs.

In August 2000, his mother stayed in a hospital to deliver the newborn baby. Her work unit sent people to watch her during and after her hospital stay.

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

48

To prevent the couple from going to Beijing again, the police and personnel from his parents' work unit intercepted them twice when the couple traveled by train. During one of the raids, Rong's head and legs were caught and squeezed in the police vehicle's door. Both the little boy's and his mother's clothes were torn up by the police. Because of the frightening experiences, Rong started to have diarrhea and cried throughout the night.

In May of 2001, police from Changzhou kidnapped Rong's father and illegally sentenced him to two years of labor camp. The school's security guard, Li Honggen, kept Rong and his mother under 24-hour surveillance, The. The police also threatened his mother, saying that once Rong turns one-year-old, they will send her to a labor camp.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2001/7/14/12258.html

#### 20) An outstanding high school student from Changchun city was deprived his right to education due to his belief

Yin Xiaotian was fifteen years old and was forbidden to attend school since 2002. He started cultivating Falun Dafa on October 1997. Ever since July 20, 1999, when Falun Gong was banned by the government, the Anmin elementary school deprived his right to participate in any activities for honor students because he had gone to Beijing twice with his parents to appeal for Falun Gong. He was punished with open criticism in front of the entire school [Note: a system left over from the cultural revolution whereby people are criticized publicly or in front of their colleagues and peers to pressure and intimidate them and others into following the government ideology.] They also wrote on his transcript record: "Went to appeal in Beijing twice and will not give up Falun Dafa even after much coaching. As such, it has caused a lot of damage to the school..."

In the summer of 2001, he was accepted to the Chaoyang No.1 Middle School in the Chaoyang District, Changchun City, due to outstanding scores. When the principal from the No.1 Middle School received his record from Anmin elementary school, he found out that Yin is a Falun Gong practitioner. Therefore, he tried to force Yin to write a letter of guarantee not to practice Falun Gong, and made it clear to Yin that he would not be allowed to attend Chaoyang No.1 Middle School unless wrote the letter of guarantee. Yin refused their request.

In the end, he was sent to the No. 69 Middle School, the lowest ranking middle school in Changchun. On his first day of class, the principal Chang Jun asked Yin's opinion regarding Falun Gong. Yin clarified the truth about Falun Gong. Chang said, "You cannot come to class unless you write the letter of guarantee not to practice Falun Gong." Yin said, "It's not because I have bad grades and it's not because I have bad discipline problems; on the contrary, people generally acknowledge me as a well-mannered, outstanding student. You do not have a reason to disallow me to attend the school. According to the law, people are entitled to have nine years of public education. If you stop me from attending school and strip me of my right to pursue knowledge, you are breaking the 'Education Act.'"

> 全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

49

He went to school on his own on the third and the fourth day, and clarified the truth to them as usual. Principal Chang said, "There's nothing I can do. The head of the Education Bureau said to me that nothing would happen if you don't come to school, but we must brainwash you if you do come to school. If you want to attend school, you must write the letter of guarantee; otherwise, you cannot come to school or classes."

Just because he wants to be a good person based on the principle of "truth, compassion, and forbearance," and want to be a good student, the Jiang regime deprived his right to attend school and to be educated.

Ever since July 20, 1999, Yin Xiaotian has not had any peace in daily life. His father Yin Xueqing was illegally detained in Changchun's Chaoyanggou Labor Camp for a year because he went to appeal for the right to practice Falun Gong. His Mom, Chen Yanmei, was illegally detained in Changchun's Heizuizi Labor Camp 1 year and then her term was extended for more than half a year without reason. During that year, Yin didn't have anybody to take care of him and had to live under another's roof.

His father was released in 2000 and he was able to live with him. In the winter of 2000, his mother was released. His family was finally able to live together again. But the peace did not last for too long. Because his father made a solemn declaration on the Internet in March [taking back any 'guarantees' he had signed], he was illegally sentenced 2 years labor camp. Currently, he is illegally detained in Changchun Chaoyanggou Labor Camp. His mother is also on the wanted list. She is currently living a difficult life, moving from place to place, to avoid further arresting. Yin Xiaotian once again became a child without a caretaker.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2002/2/15/18758.html

# 21) A 16-year-old girl in Qidong county, Hunan province was illegally detained for her belief in Falun Gong

By Jan. 26, 2002, a sixteen-year-old girl has been illegally detained for more than six months by the Qidong County Police Department in Hunan Province. Liu Haiying lives in Baidishi Town of Qidong County. All of her five family members are Falun Gong practitioners. Four years ago, when her little brother was nine years old, he was diagnosed with leukemia. After he started practicing Falun Gong, he was completely cured, though he had been "sentenced to death" by doctors. All her family members then became Falun Gong practitioners.

In order to safeguard Falun Dafa, her parents went to Beijing to appeal. She and her parents also clarified the truth by providing literature to many people. Because of this, her parents were arrested and put in jail three times, endured many tortures. In mid-March 2001, policeman He Zhengrong and others took her parents to Guoshuiping Police Substation and severely beat her father and cracked a bone in his leg. They also pierced all ten fingers with needles. Although her parents lost consciousness during the severe torture, they still refused to

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会

**Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners** 

50

### Falun Gong Persecution Report

reveal the source of the truth-clarifying literature. The vicious police handcuffed her father's hands behind his back for three consecutive days, and forced him to go without food or water. After such severe torture, he was extremely weak and could barely breathe. Later he was carried to a van and sent back to Qidong Detention Center where he went on a hunger strike for thirty days. After a while, because he insisted on practicing Falun Gong, he experienced a miraculous recovery of the severe injuries that had caused great pain to his wounded body. His complete recovery occurred without any medical attention, in spite of the dreadfully bad environment.

On June 20, 2001, Haiyang's parents were released and returned home. The entire family used every opportunity to clarify the truth to people and deliver flyers to the neighborhood. On July 21, 2001, Liu Haiying was arrested while handing out literature. Her parents were also arrested, and again endured brutal beatings and torture. After they were detained, a policeman posted a notice stating that everybody could have visitors except for Falun Gong practitioners. Currently, sixteen-year-old Liu Haiying is still in jail. Liu planned on continuing her education, but cannot because she is still being unjustly detained. Her little brother and other family members miss her very much, but are not allowed to visit her.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2002/1/26/18113.html

#### 22) A bright young girl was persecuted because of her belief in Falun Gong

Xie Ying , 13 year-old is a practitioner from Lanzhou City, Gansu Province. Being very smart, she entered junior high school at the age of only eight and half years old, and was well known as a child prodigy. She began to cultivate Falun Dafa in November 1998 and went to Beijing twice with her mother to clarify the truth, and was illegally detained five times. She was also forced to stay away from home for over a year.

In May 2000, the police illegally ransacked her home, arrested her and sent her to a brainwashing class in Lanzhou. They interrogated her about the situation in her home but she told them nothing. When her father took her home, the authorities demanded her to make certain promises. She rejected adamantly. She also refused to accept the school principal's request to not mention anything about Falun Gong in school after she went back. She has been facing high pressure since then.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2003/5/5/35277.html

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

51

### 23) Sichuan young practitioner stated her sufferings: illegal detainment for 1 year

Name unknown, Female, 16 years old. She went to Beijing to appeal for Falun Gong when I was 14 and 15 years old. Later she couldn't go to school and had to wander around to escape persecution. In the end of March of Year 2003, she was detained while distributing truth clarification material. At the beginning of April, she was captured and brought back. In August, she was illegally detained again. It took more than 5 months this time. She was tortured dreadfully. She wanted to escape, so she started to have hunger strike. Everyday she was forced feeding 4 times a day. It lasted for several days. Her mouth was totally damaged. The police threatened her that she would be detained permanently. She saw a police dragged a practitioner over 50 years old to force-feeding and felt very afraid. In order to escape from it, she crossed the window and dropped to the ground. When she was sent to Hospital, she was diagnosed as spinal fracture. As soon as she was put on the bed, the police forced her to wear handcuff and shackle. The police screamed at her and said she would be vein-injected until she stopped hunger strike or died. One month later she was leased. Her relative who picked up was forced to write 3 letters to renounce Falun Gong.

Related link: http://search.minghui.org/mh/articles/2003/4/13/48292.html

### 24) A 16-year-old girl from Hebei province was subjected to horrific torture

Name unknown, female, 16 years old from Hebei Province. In October 2000, she went to Tiananmen Square to peacefully appeal for Falun Dafa. She was arrested and detained at a local detention center. To protest the illegal arrest, she went on a hunger strike at the detention center. Under orders from the deputy head and a director at the center, police officers inserted a tube through the practitioner's nose and administered a large amount of salt water, injuring her stomach. She and othe rfellow practitioners demanded the right to practice the Falun Gong exercises and their immediate, unconditional release. In response, the girl was stripped of her clothing by the police. They used a high-powered electric baton to shock her on her face, mouth, behind the head, chest, armpits, inner thighs, and other sensitive areas of the body. She was forced to wear a set of heavy, cast iron shackles for nine days. During that time, her hands and feet were chained together so that she could not stand up straight or use the toilet on her own. The police also chained practitioners together in pairs. To force the young girl to give up the practice, the policemen placed her in solitary confinement for over three months. After ten months of detention, her father paid 4,000 Yuan [500 Yuan is the average monthly income for an urban worker in China] to bail her out. She was also expelled from school for her belief in Falun Dafa.

Between February 2002 and November 2002, the policemen harassed the girl and her family during this so-called "sensitive period." On the evening of November 3rd, policemen from a local police station broke into their home through a window after they tried, and failed, to

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

52

break in through the door. They kidnapped the girl and her mother, who tried to resist the illegal arrest. The policemen tied them together that night and used an electric baton to shock them. The next day they were both sent to a detention center. By that time, the police had already extorted 6,000 Yuan from the girl's father. He paid another 2,000 Yuan at the police station to bail out his daughter. The police, however, put the girl into a police station dormitory for the purpose of "constant surveillance." She was forced to stay there for ten days, and her family was charged 300 Yuan a day. After another 3,000 Yuan was extorted, she was finally allowed to go home.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2003/4/18/34650.html

#### 25) An honor student was barred from high school

Name unknown, female, was born on January 20, 1987, and now forced to be homeless to avoid police harassment and persecution. Since the persecution of Falun Dafa began on July 20, 1999, she followed her parents to Beijing twice to appeal. She was beaten, abused, threatened and subjected to extortion by lawless policemen. Furthermore, she was illegally detained, photographed against my will, interrogated, handcuffed and confined in a solitary cell. After she returned, her schoolmaster, teachers, and personal friends, sent by different levels of the education bureaus, "talked" with her, and tried to force her to write a "Guarantee Statement."\* She refused, so they took away all he honors including Student Leader, Provincial Level Pacesetter, City Level Excellent Student Award and Junior Reporter of Chinese Youth Newspaper. They told her that she wouldn't be qualified for nomination in the future. They also disciplined her with school-level public criticism and removed her Young Pioneer title.

On each government holiday, her schoolteachers called her in to see them both morning and evening and forbid me to travel or even go outside. Sometimes when she was in class, she would be asked to leave, by the teacher saying, "A leader from the education bureau wants to talk with you. You should just listen and say nothing." If she told them her thoughts, they would chide her for being too stubborn to be changed and another "ideology education" would be arranged for her. Such a life lasted till she graduated from primary school.

When she was preparing to enter high school, she visited many secondary schools, but all refused to accept her just because I practice Falun Dafa. They all said, "No matter how excellent you are, we won't accept you because your case involves the matter of politics."

Finally, she was assigned to a secondary school near her home. Schoolmaster said, "Our school refuses Falun Gong so we cannot accept you. This is what the city's Education Bureau instructed, thus I have no choice." Just before the new semester began, she went to school to tell them, "You can't deprive me of my right to education." But they said, "You must write a guarantee to promise that you will not practice Falun Gong any more and will not go to Beijing to appeal again. And you must also write a repentance statement. Then we will see

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

53

whether you have really transformed. If not, we'll continue to transform you. If you don't write, we can do nothing even if you come every day." I insisted on not writing the "guarantee." Since then, she has not been able to go to school. Since her parents were illegally arrested and sentenced to forced labor, she cannot return home and have to stay with others. The girl wrote in her letter "I really want to study, but they have denied my right to pursue my education."

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2003/5/9/35438.html

#### 26) A teenager girl was persecuted for her belief in Falun Gong

Name: unknown, a teenage girl and young Falun Gong practitioner. On Feb. 17, 2002, County plain cloth policemen came and arrested her without any legal document. She was dragged to the police station. They unfolded the window curtain and asked if she's still practicing Falun Gong. She answered she would follow "Truth, Compassion and Tolerance" (Note: princliple of Falun Gong)

Later she realized that they were looking for excuses to detain her, so she tore apart the written record. The police was very angry. They beat her leg and head with a stick and dragged her handcuff to force her to move upstairs. Her hand was cut bleeding, then they changed to drag her hair. After she's dragged upstairs, they forced her to knee down. She said she wouldn't do it. They pushed and beat her to the ground, stump on her head with their feet took off her shoes and slammed on her heels with hard plastic tubes. Later she was sent to Shuangcheng Police station (local 610 office was also there) and detained for 15 days. Then she was sent to the 2nd Detention Center. She started hunger strike. The nineth day of the hunger strike, she was forced feeding. Her nose was damaged to bleed. This first hunger strike lasted 13 days. She required unconditional release. Several days later, she went on for the 2nd strike, which lasted for 17 or 18 days. They force-fed her with two bottles of high concentration salt solution. She was under extreme pain. All people in the cell were scared to cry. She was detained until May 8, 2002. The director of the County police sent her home.

Gradually she found out her family was forced to collect money to prevent her from further persecution. The police station sent the message to ask for 8000 Yuan. When they sent the money, she wasn't released. Everyday her family anxiously expected her to be back. It's an unbearable torment. Later the police station said, "we'll release her if we got another \$3000." Her family re-collected the money and took her home.

Related link: http://search.minghui.org/mh/articles/2003/4/2/47552.html

#### 27) A 11-year-old girl was persecuted for practicing Falun Gong

Name unknown, female, 11 years old student. On July 22, 1999, she went with her parents to Beijing to clarify the truth about Falun Gong to the government. However, they were arrested

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

54

by plain-clothes policemen and taken to the liaison office in Beijing. We did not have any actual meals for two days. Later her parents were taken away by their work units, while she was left to go home on my own.

The persecution became more and more intense. Things she would like to say boiled up in her heart and she could not bear it; therefore she went once again with her mom in September 2000 to the Appeals Office in Beijing. The policemen forcefully pulled both of them into their car and sent to the liaison office in Beijing. It was very cold that day. After they were put through a round of strict body searches, they sat and also slept on the icy cold floor.

On Monday night, with my mom once again, they spent another night on the floor that was even colder than before. Under most conditions she is able to fall asleep once she lay down, but this time she did not sleep at all during the whole night.

On the second day, an officer from the mother's work unit took them to the police station. They forbade them to talk, sit, move or look around. After about two hours she was taken away and separated from mom. The officer sent her back to school and took her directly to the principal's office and let the principal speak to her. The teachers also came to pressure me. I was determined not to give up cultivation and they finally left dejectedly.

In July 2001, she went with a young practitioner the same age as herself (11 years old) to Tiananmen Square. They held high a banner with the words, "Truthfulness, Compassion, Forbearance" on it. We were knocked to the ground with one kick from the policemen and were dragged away by our hair.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2003/4/10/34345.html

#### 28) High school girl was persecuted for her belief in Falun Gong

Name unknown, female, teenage. In February 2002, she and I her mom (her only relative) went to Beijing to clarify the facts about Dafa. This resulted in their being illegally taken to the Chengdu Province Agency in Beijing. As soon as they arrived they were illegally body-searched and held there for the next 8 days. It was winter and the temporary shed where we were being detained was very cold with no bed, blankets, or bathrooms. We were forced to pay for food rations at 25 Yuan per day What they got were leftovers from the government staff workers. They had to ask permission if they wanted go to the bathroom, and even then they got refused. More often than not they were woken up by the cold. At this time I was only 14 years old.

In April 2000, they appealed to the higher authorities for Falun Gong and her mom was detained for another 41 days. Since then, her mother was detained several times, she I had to stay at home by herself.

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

55

In July 2001, when she was 15 years old, she graduated from middle school and would go in to preschool education teacher training but she couldn't because she was a Falun Gong practitioner and it was explicitly forbidden by notice of the Student Recruiting Office. Instead, she went to high school. As soon as they realized that she was a practitioner, the school's staff tried different ways (including brainwashing) to stop her from practicing Falun Gong. They didn't allow her to clarify the truth of Falun Gong. They also threatened to expel her from school if she kept doing this. They also pressured her not to clarify the truth when she saw attempts to slander Falun Gong in her homework assignments and examinations.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2003/4/3/34083.html

#### 29) A 2-year-old boy was detained with Mom for 9 months

A two-year-old boy from Mengyang County, Pengzhou City and Sichuan Province was abducted with his parents and Grandma to County Governmet because of their belief in Falun Gong. The boy was first detained with his Mother in one shabby room for more than 3 months. Inside the room, there are many masquito and Maggots. Later because they didn't have moneyto pay for the fine, they were sent to Pengzhou Detention Cener. Until March 18, 2003 his case was reported by Falun Info Center, the boy had been detained for more than 9 months. According to the witness, everyday he slammed the door with his little hands and shouted, "let me go out.". When a reporter called the Pengzhou detention, he was astonished to find out there were more children in the detention center.

Related link: http://search.minghui.org/mh/articles/2003/3/20/46808.html

#### 30) A talented student was expelled from school

Name unknown, 9 years old, from a main city in north China.

His dad and mom never agreed in giving up their birthright to practice Falun Dafa, so they had to endure constant pressure from work, such as being asked to write statements agreeing never to practice Falun Dafa again and to go on television to declare their position publicly. One night in June 2001, a group of policemen tried to arrest his Dad illegally. They forced their way into the boy's house and seized about thirty thousand dollars worth of our personal possessions for no reason. They took Mom to the police station and left 13-year-old Sister and the 9-year old boy home alone. Since that day, his dad did not dare to come home. Ever since then, policemen watched his mom day and night and put all kinds of pressure on his mom, came to her office as often as they wanted and frightened her with all kinds of methods. She had no personal freedom at all. Finally, she could not bear it anymore and left my sister at home by herself and took the boy with her to leave home to avoid the persecution.

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

56

Dad, Mom and me have become homeless for more than a year. They do not have any dependable place to stay. Many nights, the three of the slept on the cement floor, hugging each other; the boy always curled up from the shivering cold.

The boy wrote at the end in his letter to us, "How I wish to be able to go back to school again! When I left school, my teacher told me in private that a present was already being brought for me since I got the highest scores in my final exam. I want to go to school! I want to finish my education! I miss my sister and want to be reunited with her! I want to go home! I want the police station return all our belongings! I miss all my relatives, my teacher, my classmates, and my buddies! When can I return home? When can I see my relatives? "

Footnote: In the struggle to suppress Falun Dafa, the police eventually captured the three members of the family in this article. Their whereabouts are still unknown.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2003/3/21/33526.html

### **31)** Experiences of a 15-year-old high school student suffering from the persecution

Tie Long, male, 15 years old, from Shao Village, Liu Chun Town, in Dingzhou City, Hebei province. Before the 16th Communist Party Congress was held last year, he was spreading the Fa to his teacher using a CD and other truth-clarification materials. For this, his schoolteacher reported him. Liuchun Police arrested Tie Long and took him to the town government building, where he was handcuffed to a tree and beaten up by the police until they were tired. They left to take a break, and Tie Long managed to escape.

Tie Long was forced to wander around homeless to avoid being persecuted. Officials arrested Tie Long's older brothers, uncles, aunts, all of them, and they were brutally beaten as police attempted to track down young Tie Long. His uncle can't get out of bed because of this, he can't take food properly, nor look after himself.

Young Tie Long made his way to his grandmother's home, but he didn't dare stay there for long. He left in a hurry, as he didn't want to get his grandma into trouble. The police followed him and came to his grandmother's home later. They beat his uncle and aunt badly, then broke into their store and ransacked it. When they asked where they could find Tie Long, his aunt said: "I don't know." The police then took his aunt away to the detention center, and she still hasn't been released. Soon after, they arrested Tie Long. He was detained at the Dingzhou Detention Center.

Before the Chinese New Year, the police released Tie Long's father, and asked him to pay 10,000 Yuan to them to release Tielong. Since the persecution of Falun Gong began in 1999, their home has been ransacked several times, and there is little left to give, so Tie Long's

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

57

father couldn't give them any money, and Tielong wasn't released. Out of a family of four happy members in the past, three of them are now suffering badly in prison.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2003/3/14/33279.html

#### 32) Why was I forced to leave school at age of 16?

Name unknown, male, 16 years old, Beijing. The boy wrote at the beginning in the letter "I had never thought, even in my dreams, that I, who loved to study, would be forced to leave school, leave my beloved teacher and schoolmates. Since childhood, the education I had received was to love my country. But did I love it wrongly? Who was it that changed my beloved country like this? "

He learned Falun Gong in Beijing when was ten years old. After practicing, a hereditary disease in his trachea greatly improved. My medical expenses were reduced dramatically. Gradually, I didn't even need to spend one cent on medical expenses. Since then, I have never suffered from the pain of illnesses.

After July 20, 1999 since his Mom and Dad didn't want go against their conscience to say that Falun Gong is not good, they went to appeal at the Appeals Bureau, and were detained many times. When he was in the second grade of Junior High School, the police called him out from an English class and told him if he would persuade his mother to stop practicing Falun Gong, they would let him visit her. Since then, his life has no longer been peaceful. In junior high school, this kind of "talk" happened to me three times. When he was in class, he was suddenly called out, threatened and questioned. Unexpectedly, on May 1, right before his graduation exams from Junior High School when he just turned fifteen, personnel from the street administration committee and the head of his school used the excuse of visiting his mother to trick him into a brainwashing class.

Because of worrying and the constant harassment, he only got admitted into an average high school. At that time, his dear mother was forced to leave home again, and had not been back for over one year.

In the beginning of September of this year, the school secretary and the vice president asked him out for another "talk." They asked him if I still practiced Falun Gong. He told them righteously that he still does. He also told them how he benefited from it and that Dafa is good. Dafa practitioners are being persecuted, and are being treated unjustly. In the late afternoon on September 28, the police once again kidnapped his father and him to the brainwashing class. A few days later, he felt close to a mental collapse. The tremendous pressure and the endless lies made him feel suffocated every second. He wanted to cry but was tearless. Finally, he had to leave high school and wander about like his mother.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2003/1/4/30519.html

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

58

# 33) Ordeals of a 16-year-old high school student at the Hulufa Brainwashing Center, Beijing

Name unknown, 16 years old, high school student, has been practicing Falun Gong for more than 6 years. The following is her description of her experience of been brainwashed.

On April 25, 1999, my mother and I went to Zhongnanhai to appeal for Dafa. After that, I also practiced Falun Gong outdoors. Since then, the personnel from my local residence office and the police station have been harassing me at my school and at home. But I never give up practicing Falun Gong since I have not done anything wrong. However I feel pain from the separation from my family members. My parents have been detained illegally many times. My mother has had to leave home in order to avoid the persecution and I am not able to see her although I miss her very much.

Once, when my parents were detained, the police came to my school and took me to the principal's office. They surrounded me and scolded me. They told me that if I asked my parents to give up practicing Falun Gong, they would let me visit them; otherwise I could never see them.

On April 31, 2001, I agreed to let the police take me to visit my mother. They said I could "Take a look at your mother and stay there for two days." They took me to Hulufa in the Fangshan District. I arrived only to find out that they had deceived me. The police tried to force me to write a statement of my intention to give up Falun Gong. They said, "You can't leave without writing this statement." They pointed to a man who was running constantly in the courtyard as an example.

One evening, just before going to sleep, I discovered many awful black and blue bruises on my mother's back, shoulders, and arms. I immediately burst into tears. I later learned about the torture that my mom had received in this brainwashing center. First, they took turns brainwashing and threatening her and did not allow her to sleep for several days. They punished her by various means, including making her stand facing the wall, kicking her, punching her, and forcing her to run around the courtyard for six hours. They even threatened to let a dog bite her. My mom was finally forced to give in.

During those days, I was not able to think clearly. Their various lies made me muddleheaded. By that time, I was on the edge of mental collapse and was exhausted from reasoning with them. I was forced to write a statement of renunciation of Dafa.

But the they still did not leave me alone. On one evening in September 2002, some women from my local residence office and some police from local police station took my father and me to Hulufa again. All of our neighbors were shocked by this news. The police forced me to give them my fingerprints.

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

59

The next day, the Bureau of Education instructed the leaders at my school to assign a teacher to accompany me every day to the brainwashing center in order to "influence" me. Every day, I felt depressed or even that it was too painful to live. I often felt that my mind was on the verge of collapse. Every day, those people who had enlightened along the evil path and the police constantly instilled evil thoughts into my head and the teacher from my school kept deceiving me. I doubted that I could last much longer

At the brainwashing center, I found out that they wanted me to assist in the arrest of my mom. My mom managed to escape. Her life, although unsettled and difficult, is no longer one of humiliation.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2002/12/15/29770.html

### 34) Police in Yanggu county, Shandong province sent 6-month-old baby to Detention Center with his parents

A 6-month old baby was recently sent with his parents to a detention center, simply because his grandparents practice Falun Gong. Now he is in a very difficult situation.

Prior to practicing Falun Gong, this baby's grandfather had liver cancer, but after he started to practice, his disease miraculously went away. Since the persecution started, he has been forced to become homeless, and has suffered a lot. In order to arrest the baby's grandfather, even though his relatives are non-practitioners, the homes where he had stayed were ransacked, and the occupants were threatened and kidnapped by the officials of the "610 office in Yuangu City. Prior to the 16th Party Congress in November 2002, the local police broke into the baby's home and tried to force his parents, who are non-practitioners, to tell them where his grandfather lived--but his parents didn't know. Then, without saying another word the police arrested both parents and sent them along with the baby to a detention center.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2002/12/1/29237.html

#### 35) Who deprived little Hu Ming of his parents' care?

Hu Ming, male,2 years old. On June 30th 2002, little Hu Ming turned two years old but it was a very sad birthday. His father Hu Qianfeng, a Dafa practitioner and a worker from the Capital Steel Factory of Beijing, is being unlawfully detained at Beijing's Tuanhe Forced Labor Camp. His mother Ma Li, like his father, a Dafa practitioner and employee of the Special Steel Division of Beijing's Capital Steel Factory, is being unlawfully detained at Beijing's Xinan Forced Labor Camp for Women.Little Hu Ming has never met his father. Mingming's second birthday is coming up. He must be asking, "Mom and dad, where are you?"

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2002/7/14/24091.html

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

60

### 36) Shijiazhuang Falun Gong practitioner Bai Yuzhi's teenage son was arrested and sent to a brainwashing class

Li Wenzhong, male, 19, son of Bai Yuzhi. Since Wenzhong's parents were illegally sentenced to a forced labor camp for practicing Falun Gong, he has been living all by himself. He was recently arrested by the Shijiazhuang Jingxing police and put into a brainwashing class. They even forced Li Zhongwen, who is underage, to give up his belief in Falun Dafa and forced him to discontinue his studies in school.

On July 20, 1999, when Li Zhongwen's mother, Bai Yuzhi, was illegally sentenced to three years' forced labor, he was only 14 years old. In 2000, his father, Li Dongliang, was also illegally sentenced to three years' forced labor for clarifying the truth. However the child did not give up; instead he followed the principles of Falun Dafa and tried to be a good person.

Zhongwen often clarifies the truth to people around him and so he also receives persecution by the followers of Jiang. In the middle of April 2002, he was arrested by policemen and was put into a brainwashing class, where he has been detained for an indefinite duration. He is persecuted severely both physically and spiritually.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2002/6/1/22648.html

### 37) Mother kidnapped by police in Liaoning Province, 12-year-old daughter nowhere to be found

Yang Yang, female, 12 years old, from Haicheng city, Liaoning province. A 12-year-old practitioner Yang Yang disappeared after her mother was kidnapped by the police.

In a massive dragnet operation between March and April 2002, Haicheng City police searched every household in the city for Falun Gong practitioners, forcing many practitioners to become homeless. Yang Yang had been living with her mother since her parents divorced early in her childhood. The last time the mother and daughter were together was when they were distributing truth-clarifying materials. They were observed and reported on. Yang Yang's mother was detained but Yang Yang escaped with the help of some kind-hearted people. Yang Yang became homeless. She was so worried about her mother being tortured in jail. Her relatives put together some money to have her mother released from detention, but within 40 minutes of her release, another group of police officers came and took her away again. This time they left no trail. Not only has the mother disappeared but Yang Yang as well.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2002/5/3/21631.html

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

61

### **38)** An outstanding high school student from Changchun City was stripped of his right to education

Yi Xiaotian, female, 15 years old. Young Falun Gong practitioner. Ever since July 20, 1999, when Falun Gong was banned by the government, the Anming elementary school stripped me of my right to participate in any activities for honor students because she had gone to Beijing twice with her parents to appeal to the government to stop the persecution against Falun Gong. She was punished with open criticism in front of the entire school

In the summer of 2001, Xiaotian was accepted to the Chaoyang No.1 Middle School in the Chaoyang District, Changchun City, due to her outstanding scores. When the principal from the No.1 Middle School got my record from Anming elementary school, he found out that Xiaotian was a Falun Gong practitioner. Therefore, he tried to force me to write a letter of guarantee, and made it clear to her that she would not be allowed to attend Chaoyang No.1 Middle School unless she wrote the letter of guarantee. Xiaotian refused their request.

In the end, I was sent to the No. 69 Middle School, the lowest ranking middle school in Changchun. On my first day of class, the principal Chang Jun asked me for my opinion regarding Falun Gong. Xiaotian told him the truth about Falun Gong. He said, "You cannot come to class unless you write the letter of guarantee not to practice Falun Gong." She rejected again.

Ever since July 20, 1999, Xiaotian has not had any peace in rh daily life. Her father Yi Xueqing was illegally detained in Changchun's Chaoyanggou Labor Camp for a year because he went to appeal for the right to practice Falun Gong. Her Mom, Chen Yanmei, was illegally detained in Changchun's Hezuizi Labor Camp for a year and then her term was extended for more than half a year without reason. During that year, Xiaotian didn't have anybody to take care of me and had to live under another's roof.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2002/2/15/18758.html

#### 39) Little sister and brother suffered from the persecution

Jia Xiaoshuai, female, 14 years old. Jia Kaiqi, male, 12 years old. Their father, Jia Jingshuo has been detained in Shijiazhuang labor camp since March, 2000. Their mother, Mi Wenlian, was arrested on August 25, 2000 in Shijiazhuang. She disappeared ever since then.

Two kids have not been taken care after their parents arrested.

Related link: http://search.minghui.org/mh/articles/2002/1/20/23473.html

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

62

#### 40) Little prisoner in the modern society

One night all six members of Wang Zideng, a Falun Dafa practitioner from Shandong Province were arrested including his two-year old son and a two-year old grand daughter. The police officers even didn't allow enough time to dress the children properly. While in the prison, the children pressed their faces against the metal fence and cried hard and wanted to go home. Their noses were bleeding. They were called the little prisoners of the modern society.

Related link: http://search.minghui.org/mh/articles/2000/9/27/1569.html

#### 41) A baby girl was forced to wane due to the persecution of her mother

Ms. Liang was a Falun Dafa practitioner from Sichuan Province. One day in February 2000 after the Chinese Spring Festival, she was arrested for practicing Falun Gong outside. Police slapped her and her four-month old daughter. In the midnight on July 19, 2000, Ms. Liang was arrested from her home while she was sleeping at her home. She was forcibly taken to the police station and her breast-feeding daughter was left a home alone. She was tied to a pillar. Her milk dripped down and soaked her clothes while her daughter was hungry at home. The next day, she was sent to a detention center for 15 days. On August 3, she was taken back to the police station. She was only allowed to go home when her family members were forced to write a "Guarantee Letter" of no longer practicing Falun Gong on her behalf. She was forced to report to the police station and she was frequently harassed. To avoid further persecution she had to become homeless. Her daughter was forced to wane. A healthy baby quickly turned into a thin and weak child.

Related link: http://search.minghui.org/mh/articles/2000/8/22/2878.html

#### 42) A fourteen- year-old girl was forced to stay in a nursing home

Since Ms. Wang Ying, the 14-year old daughter of Falun Dafa practitioner Ms. Bai Lili' made a request to the police station to release her mother, she was forced to work in Dongzhimenwai Nursing Home in the East District of Beijing City. Everyday, she was "accompanied by two students when she went to school and came back to the nursing home. A lady watched her in her room in the nursing home. She was not allowed to go anywhere else, not allowed to contact with anybody. She was even refused to go out on Saturdays and Sundays. The clothes she needed had to be approved by officials. She was not allowed to spend any of the money her mother left for her. Ms. Wang Ying felt very lonely and wanted to play with her cat but she could not get it. She was completely cut off from outside. We don't whether her depression has become now.

Related link: http://search.minghui.org/mh/articles/2000/4/4/2146.html

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

63

### **Chapter Four**

### **Cases of Children Separated rom Parents Who Practice Falun Gong**

1) Lin Huixuan, a 5-year-old girl, was forcibly taken away from her parents



Both Lin Huixuan's parents (father Dr. Lin Yanqing and mother Xu Lei) and grandparents (Mr. Xu Zhaotong and Ms. Li Fengying) are Falun Gong practitioners.

Dr. Lin Yanqing was a Postdoctoral research fellow at the School of Civil Engineering of Harbin Institute of Technology (HIT) in Harbin City, Heilongjiang Province. In the past four years, Dr. Lin has been illegally abducted and detained in prison, the forced brainwashing center and the forced labor camp. In the end of

2002, he was illegally sentenced to three years in the forced labor camp. He remains illegally detained even after losing seven fingers as a result of the persecution.

In 2001, Dr. Lin Yanqing's wife (Xu Lei, 32) and parents-in-law (Xu Zhaotong, 62; Li Fengying, 55), and daughter Lin Huixuan, were forced to become destitute and homeless in order to avoid being illegally arrested from their home. In the afternoon of February 19, 2004, they were arrested in Harbin City, Heilongjiang Province. After Dr. Lin Yanqing's wife and parents-in-law were arrested, the wicked people planned to take them back to Beijing. Little Huixuan was forcibly taken away from the people she loves most, and separated from her mother. It is unimaginable what pain her little heart has suffered. Currently, the little girl is in the care of another relative.

Related link: <u>http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/3/14/45985p.html</u> http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2003/12/21/43340p.html

> 全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

64

### 2) Zhang Yuanyuan, a 4-year-old girl, was kidnapped by police and forced away from her parents



On Jan. 1, 2004, Zhang Yuanyuan was kidnapped by police officers from Tongan County, Chongqing City. Under the pressure of international media, Yuanyuan was finally sent back to her grandfather on Aug 26, 2004.

Zhan Yuanyuan was born on July, 16, 1999. Both her father Zhang Hongxu and mother Wu Yongmei are Falun Gong practitioners. Zhang Hongxu had been detained in Xishanpin Labor Camp for two years, and was released in early 2002. However, he was forced to become destitute and homeless in order to avoid being illegally arrested from home. On Dec. 23,

2003, police broke into their home and arrested Yuanyuan's mother Wu Yongmei in front of her. Yuanyuan was terribly horrified by this. Wu Yongmei was extremely weak after constant brutal tortures in jail. Being afraid of taking responsibility for Wu's imminent death, labor camp authorities sent her back home. She demanded Yuanyuan back to her and was rejected by the police. Finally, she was also forced to leave home, and has not been heard since then.

Related Link: http://www.minghui.org/mh/articles/2004/6/9/76686.html http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/9/30/52976.html

### 3) Yang Xinyu & Fang Nanjie, call for release of their loved parents



Yang Xinyu, 11-year-old, and Fang Nanjie, 9-year-old, are sisters from Chengdu City, Sichuan Province. They used to have a happy family with grandfather, father and mother. Their father Yang Zhu and mother Fang Jing are both Falun Gong practitioners.

During the past five years, their family experienced separations numerous times due to the persecution. Because of appealing for Falun Gong at Tiananmen Square, their mother Fang Jing had been illegally detained for a while in the Nanmusi Women's Forced Labor Camp in Zizhong,

Sichuan Province. In July 2001, their whole family again went to Beijing to clarify the truth. As a result, their parents Yang Zhu and Fang Jing were both detained. Fang Jing was illegally sentenced to three years in Women's Forced Labor Camp in Chengdu City, Sichuan Province, and Yang Zhu was sentenced to two years in Xinhua Forced Labor Camp in Mianyang City, Sichuan Province. Their grandpa's health deteriorated dramatically due to the incessant strikes,

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

65

and he passed away in February 2003. Currently, they are taken care of by elderly grandmother.

Related Link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/1/7/43873p.html

### 4) Huhu, 4-year-old boy, left alone after happy family torn apart by persecution



Huhu was born in a happy family. Both his father Yu Chao and mother Chu Tong, graduates from the prestigious Qinghua University of China, are Falun Gong practitioners. They used to have very good jobs. However, because of peacefully appealed for Falun Gong, his mother Chu Tong was secretly sentenced to 18 months. As she exposed her experience of being persecuted, she was searched by the police and had to escape from home. Huhu then had to follow her parents to escape from one place to another to avoid being arrested. Facing such high pressure and unstable life, they were forced to leave Huhu with a friend.

In August 2002, Chu Tong and Yu Chao couple was again abducted in Beijing. They were over detained for 16 months and suffered all

kinds of tortures. On Jan 9, 2004, Beijing City Chaoyang District Court secretly sentenced the couple along with another Ph.D. candidate of Qinghua University, Wang Weiyu. Huhu's mother Chu Tong was sentenced to 11 years, father Yu Chao was sentenced to 9 years.

Related Link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/1/19/44227.html

### 5) Both parents wee sentenced to forced labor, 3-year-old Yang Zhenyu was in a very difficult situation



Yang Zhenyu (his nickname is Yuyu) was born in November 2001. He was a very lovely and active boy, but now he has become very silent. A child who is not yet three years old has changed so drastically, because his parents were sentenced to forced labor for practicing Falun Gong.

Zhenyu's father Yang Depeng is a teacher at Zhucheng City No. 9 Middle School in Shandong Province, China. He was illegally sent to forced labor merely for typing the sentence "Falun Dafa is good" on a computer. Learning of his father's arrest, Zhenyu's mother went

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

66

to the police department to inquire about the situation. She was also detained by the police. The next day, the police, without following any legal procedures, sent Zhenyu's mother to forced labor too.

Now little Zhenyu has to be taken care of by his grandparents who are old and weak and have several illnesses. They live at Daguxian Village, Xiangzhou Town, Zhucheng City. Zhenyu and his grandparents have no income. Zhenyu' grandfather has only one good eye that can see thing clearly, while his grandmother is old and full of grey hair. They all long for the return of Zhenyu's parents.

Related Link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/10/21/53671p.html

#### 6) Both parents are being held in prison, a middle school girl Yang Wenjing is facing the plight of losing residence

Yang Wenjing is a 15-year-old middle school girl in Shijiazhuang city. Her parents are both sent to prison for their belief in Falun Gong. Currently, Yang Wenjing's grandparents are taking care of her. Her grandparents are almost 70 years old. Their only income is their scanty pension. They are having a hard time raising Yang Wenjing. It was very difficult for them even to buy a new bike for her. Their current residence belongs to Yang Jingwen's father's work unit. Recently, their residence has been scheduled to be torn down to give way for the city's renovation project. Yang Jingwen and her elderly grandparents may lose their residence and become homeless at any time. They are extremely worried.

Yang Jingwen's father Yang Xiaojie (39-year-old) and her mother Liu Runling (40-year-old) are both Falun Gong practitioners. They were forced to flee away from home on September 29, 2000 because they were on the blacklist of the police as determined Falun Gong practitioners. In October 2000, the police issued an arrest warrant for them. On the evening of September 28, 2001, the police found them and kidnapped them after beating them fiercely. In July, 2003, Yang Xiaojie was illegally sentenced to 11 years of imprisonment. He has been held in Beijiao Prison in Shijiazhuang city, Hebei province since then.

Liu Runling was sent to Penghou Street Police Station after she was kidnapped on September 28, 2001. At the police station, she was forced to be seated on the iron chair 24 hours a day for seven straight days. In the following year, she was sent to and held at four different detention centers in Shijiazhuang. In May 2003, Liu Runling was sent to the Second Prison of Shijiazhuang City without any legal court trial.

Related Link: http://minghui.ca/mh/articles/2004/10/17/86817.html

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

67

### 7) A homeless child was sent to orphanage as her mother was tortured at a Forced Labor Camp

Falun Gong practitioner Yu Yuejin, 48 years old, a resident in Harbin City, was arrested in March of 2003 for practising Falun Gong. Later she was sent to the Wanjia Forced Labor Camp in Harbin City for forced labor of three years. Here, Falun Gong practitioners are very cruelly tortured. Her four-year-old daughter was left unattended and was sent to Harbin City Children's Welfare Center (actually an orphanage) by the police from the Nangang District Police Department.

Yu Yuejin missed her daughter very much. Due to her strong request, someone from the Wanjia Forced Labor Camp took her to the orphanage to visit her daughter. After she came back, she said her lovely daughter acted as if she were in a daze and could not recognize her, due to the serious mental trauma resulting from the sudden loss of her mother's care and the change in living environments.

Because Yu Yuejin did not give up practising Falun Gong, policemen frequently tortured her. The torture methods included: shocking with electric batons, forcing her to sit on electronic chair, slandering and threatening her and other abuses. Due to the torture, Yu developed a serious heart problem and high blood pressure. Under such conditions, the police in Wanjia Labor Camp still forced Yu to do hard labor. Yu Yuejin is currently detained in the labor camp, suffering both mental and physical trauma.

Related Link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/10/17/53553p.html

### 8) An 18-year-old boy unable to finish high school as his mother is imprisoned for practicing Falun Gong

Yue Lei was born on April 22, 1986. He is a very good high school student who excels in both scholarship and moral character. His father passed away as a result of illness in 1993. His mother and his elder brother are both being held in prison for their belief in Falun Gong. In the past two years, Yue Lei has lived with his great grandma who's over 90 years old. They don't have any income and live on the tiny bit of financial support from friends and relatives. Yue Lei not only suffers the separation from family members, now he also encounters the problem of having to discontinue his study for financial reasons.

Yue Lei's mother, Yue Xia, is a Falun Gong practitioner in Weifang city, Shandong province. She was born on August 10, 1957. She was a former employee of the Second Pharmacy of Weifang city. Because of her determination in her belief in Falun Gong, she was kidnapped by police on October 30, 2002. Later, she was sentenced to 12 years of imprisonment. Now she is held in the fourth division of Jinan prison in Shandong province.

> 全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

68

Yue Lei's elder brother Yue Ping was born on February 26, 1981. When Yue Ping and his mother were at an apartment rental office, police kidnapped both of them on October 30, 2002. Yue Ping was sentenced to three years of imprisonment. Currently, he is being held at the fifth division of Weibei Prison in Shandong province.

Related Link: http://minghui.ca/mh/articles/2004/10/17/86811.html

# 9) The persecution of young Falun Gong practitioner Lu Xin in Zhuhai city, Guangdong province

Lu Xin (nicknamed Beibei), female, 12 years old. She began practicing Falun Gong alongside her parents in 1997.

When the persecution of Falun Gong began on July 20, 1999, Beibei and her parents traveled to Beijing to appeal to the government on behalf of Falun Gong. Their intention was discovered while they were on the train, and they were illegally detained. The day after they were released, her parents were unlawfully locked up in a brainwashing center. Beibei, who was in kindergarten then, was separated from her parents and placed under the care and supervision of her mother's supervisor at work and personnel appointed from the "610 Office." She lived the life of an unwanted child in an alarming and unstable environment.

Beibei's parents were later arrested and sent to the brainwashing center a few more times. Their home was also illegally searched several times. In June 2000, her mother was detained for 48 hours by the Public Security Office for visiting a fellow practitioner's home. Beibei's father was detained for 10 days for "disruptive behavior," because he wouldn't answer the door when the local police were trying to gain access to illegally search the house. Her mother asked the police to place Beibei under the care of a friend while she and her husband were both in jail. The police refused her request because the friend is also a Falun Gong practitioner, so the girl was placed under the supervision of the "Residents' Committee."

Since there were always special agents following them everywhere they went, and in order to provide a more stable and safe environment for Beibei, in November 2000, her parents placed her under the care of her maternal grandmother. The parents were unlawfully arrested in December 2000 while explaining the facts about Falun Dafa. Beibei's mother Zhou Meilin was illegally confined in a labor camp for two years and the father Lu Pingyi for three years. In July 2002, Beibei was reunited with her father and in January 2003 with her whole family. Her mother's feet had not yet recovered from injuries caused by the cruelties imposed on her in detention. She walked in slowly and painfully to see Beibei, and her feet would continue to be swollen and cause pain whenever she walked long distances. Her mother's plight pained Beibei so much that she was in tears and was deeply and fearfully affected.

On July 14, 2004, Beibei's father was illegally detained in a brainwashing center located in the Minfu Hotel in Zhuhai City. She and her mother remained at home under surveillance.

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

69

Extremely frightened, Beibei could not sleep for two nights. With strong righteous thoughts, Beibei and her mother escaped their house arrest unnoticed and have been living a life of homelessness ever since.

For five years now, Beibei's young life has been filled with terror, violence, and the pain of being constantly torn apart from her family members. Even now, she is still living a life full of anxiety about her own and her mother's safety, and her eves are filled with sadness and fear. One hardly ever sees a smile on her face.

Related Link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/9/27/52859p.html

#### 10) Falun Gong practitioner Meng Yuhua was sentenced to prison, her son and grandparents live a difficult life

Zhang Yuxin, male, elementary school student, lives in Kangping, Shenyang City, Liaoning Province. His mother Meng Yuhua was a physician. She is a kind person. She was sentenced to prison for practicing Falun Gong. His father died in a car accident. He is currently living with his grandparents.

In 2001, Police from Dadong District's Taochang Police Station in Shenyang City arrested Meng Yuhua for hanging banners clarifying the truth about Falun Gong. During Chinese Spring Festival of 2002, Meng Yuhua started a hunger strike to protest the persecution and walked out of the detention center with strong righteous thoughts. Later, she was arrested again by personnel from "610 Office" for downloading information to explain the facts about Falun Gong. Shenyang City's Dadong District Court sentenced her to 13 years in prison and sent her to Liaoning Province's Women's Prison. She is currently held at No. 6 Team, No. 9 Prison Section

After Zhang Yuxin's father died, everyone deceived him by saying that his father had gone abroad. At his mother's second arrest, his grandfather suffered from a stroke and semiparalysis. The three of them live off grandma's three hundred yuan pension each month, living an extremely difficult life. Zhang Yuxin studies very hard and believes that he will be able to see his parents if he studies well.

Related Link: http://minghui.ca/mh/articles/2004/10/19/86907.html

#### 11) Guoxing lives with 77-year-old grandmother as his father was illegally detained

Guo Xing is 13 years old and currently a sixth grade student in Fanjia Elementary School in Ganwang Town, Haicheng City. He is living with his grandmother Ms. Li Shoufeng, who is 77 years old, and they depend on each other to survive. Because they do not have any source

全球营救受迫害法轮功举员委员会

**Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners** 

70

of income, their living situation is very difficult. Guo Xing's mother had divorced his father Guo Lifeng before Guo Lifeng became a Falun Gong practitioner.

When Guo Xing was 10 years old, in April 2001, his father Guo Lifeng was abducted by "610" officials in Bayuquan District of Yingkou City by the political finance officer Li Haihua, Su Ling, and other policemen, including the Bayuquan local police. He was detained in the Haicheng City Detention Center for over two years of brutal torture. On January 28, 2003, he was illegally sentenced to eight years in prison and is currently in Jinzhou Prison. Lifeng's father Guo Jingfang died in 2002 at the age of 82 from the shock of what happened to his son.

Related Link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/10/23/53744p.html

#### 12) A middle school student Qianqian and her old grandmother are left home without Help

Wang Junchao (nickname Qianqian), is thirteen years old. She is a middle school student in Jinan City No. 12 Middle School. Her mother Li Jianmei, 45 years old, and Li Jianhui, 41 years old, are sisters, who are both Falun Gong practitioners from Jinan City, Shandong Province. Li Jianmei got divorced with Qianqian's father long before she started practicing Falun Gong. After the divorce, Li Jianmei lived together with and took care of her mother.

In 2000, Li Jianmei and Li Jianhui were sentenced to three years of forced labor for practicing Falun Gong and speaking out justice for Falun Gong. They were detained in Shandong Province Female Forced Labor Camp (i.e., Jinan City Jiangshuiquan Forced Labor Camp), where they had been forced to do slave labors and had experienced all kinds of cruel tortures. They were released and went back home around 2003 Spring Festival. On July 15, 2003, they were illegally arrested, for the second time, by Yingshijie Police Station. After they were detained in Liuchangshan Detention Center for one month, they were sentenced to one year and nine months of forced labor in Shandong Province Female Forced Labor Camp. Only their old mother, who is almost 80 years old, and Qianqian are left home in a difficult situation. The old lady has thus no financial income for living. After Qianqian lost the love of her father, she now also lose the love of her mother because of the persecution of Falun Gong by Jiang Zemin's group.

Qianqian now has to depend on the little money that her father gives her every month for living. She appears very lonely and depressed. She has to endure the pain that is caused by the situation that her mother has been illegally sentenced to forced labor.

Related link: http://minghui.ca/mh/articles/2004/10/24/87379.html

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

71

#### 13) True story of a baby less than one year-old

A baby of less than one year old has been separated from his parents three times. When he was just 6 months old inside his mother, his parents were arrested by the police for reading Falun Gong books at home. His father was detained for 35 days. Because of her pregnancy, his mother was released after fined with 500 yuan. Later the police ordered the landlord to force the mother to leave the house. Although having paid the rent for one year, the family was forced to leave the house after only three months living there. Since then, the mother and baby had no fixed place to live and had to move from one place to another.

Just 10 days before the labor, the mother went to Beijing to appeal for Falun Gong. Because her identification card was confiscated, she could not find any hotel to stay and had to sleep on the street or in the woods. In Tiananmen Square, the mother and father were both arrested together with other practitioners. After detained in Beijing for three days, they were sent back to their hometown. Just one hour before the train arrived to their hometown, the mother had the cramp and broke the water. The father and other practitioners were sent to the detention center while the mother was sent to the hospital to deliver the baby. The father was detained for 81 days but he never gave up his belief. After born, the baby and the mother experienced many hardships. When he was 7 months old, his mother was arrested when posting truth clarification materials. The police seized many Falun Dafa books and materials. 7 -8 policemen came to their home and abducted the father. The father was detained for two months and then sent to the forced labor camp for two years without any legal ground. In the labor camp, the father endured all kinds of tortures, including being handcuffed and hanged up, being slapped on faces, being shocked by electric batons, and being tied down to iron chairs in a fixed position for long time. But he never gave up his belief. Instead, he tried to clarify the truth to the policemen. Their residence registration was suspended. Now the bay also has no residence registration.

Related link: http://search.minghui.org/mh/articles/2001/10/12/17880.html

### 14) A 9-year-old boy became a helpless orphan after Fan Qifan was arrested

Ms.Fan Qifan is a Falun Gong practitioner working at the Hainan Normal University. On June 7,2000, Fan Qifan was arrested and sentenced to 3 years at a forced labor camp because she had sent a letter to a human rights organization revealing the fact that four Dafa practitioners from Hainan had been brutally tortured. She is being held in the Hainan Provincial Female Labor Camp suffering severe and brutal torture.

Fan Qifan's son became a helpless orphan because her husband had abandoned them when her son was just a baby. After spending some time in the welfare centers in Haikou city, her son's childish heart has been ruined. He has become very weird. Meantime he was deprived of the right to receive the good education. Later on Dafa practitioner Guo Yegui adopted the

> 全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

72

poor child. However, right before China's National Day (Oct. 1), 2001, Guo's whole family was illegally detained because they continued cultivating Falun Dafa. The child once again became an orphan.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2002/1/15/17744.html

#### 15) With mother illegally detained, three children left living a aifficult life

Wang Lin was born on December 12, 1978, her sister Wang Fei was born on January 17, 1986 and her brother Wang Zexing was born on September 10, 1987. Their mother was illegally detained for not giving up practicing Falun Gong and their father died in October 2002 after two years and ten months suffering from illness and family misfortune. And now, they lived a hard life with their 78 years old grandpa. Since 2003, Wang Zexing found two jobs in a row, but was not hired because the employer asked for some sort of certificate from his local police station, and the police denied his request on the grounds that his mother practiced Falun Gong. Thus created difficulty in his job applications.

Wang Xiyu, female, 53 years old. She is a Falun Gong practitioner from Guxian Town of Pingdu City, Shandong Province. In late June 2001, because a Judas reported to the authority, she was kidnapped again by the police from Guxian Town Police Station and Pingdu City Police Department. After illegal detention for half a year, she was sentence to 5 years incarceration lawlessly and jailed at Jinan Women's Prison.

Related link: http://minghui.ca/mh/articles/2004/10/16/86705.html

#### 16) A Chinese orphan in the new century

Xue Shuang is a seven-year-old girl. Her parents, Xue Xinye and Zhou Chunling, went to appeal for Falun Gong in Beijing, but both were sent to labor camps, one in Beijing and the other in their hometown. And her grandpa was detained in the No. 2 Detention Center in Hulan County, Harbin City because he refused to give up the practice of Falun Gong. Only Xue Shuang and her grandma are left now in a family that used to have five happy members. As if this were not tragic enough, corrupt officials have forced her grandma to write an anti-Falun Gong pledge. Worrying that the little girl would be left behind with no one to take care of her, the old lady wrote the pledge against her will. However, she and her grandchild were not safe even then: since they could not afford the "insurance fee" (a cash deposit; in effect, a fine), they were detained in an unheated office behind locked doors and windows in the town government building. For one day and one night, the grandmother and the seven-year-old child looked around at the cold room. There was nothing to eat or drink, and they were tortured by hunger and cold. The little girl and her grandma huddled together, shivering with cold. They both caught very bad colds, and the girl couldn't help but cry; her tears were falling

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

73

the whole time they were locked up. The perpetrators did not show any mercy on them; later on, they sent the little girl's grandma to the No. 2 Detention Center. Just like this, a happy and harmonious family has been torn apart. The little girl's loving parents and grandparents have been taken away from her. She is now living the life of an orphan: no happiness, no songs, only tears and tribulation.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2001/4/18/6883p.html

#### 17) Falun Gong practitioners Guo Wei and his wife were illegally detained, left a helpless 2-year-old son

Guo Jingjing, male, 2 years old. Guo Wei, 28, was sentenced to five years in jail at the end of 2000 for making Falun Gong truth-clarification materials. He is now detained in the Chadian Prison of Tianjin.Zhou Jing, Guo Wei's wife, also 28, was illegally sent to a forced labor camp for a one-year term beginning on August 15, 2002. She is now being detained in the Beijing Women's Forced Labor Camp. Their child Jingjing is just 2 years old and has never seen his father, because his father was arrested before his birth. His mother has also been arrested, and he has not seen her for a year.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2003/6/13/36892.html

### 18) With both parents detained, 14-year-old Zhang Lu is adopted by her aunt

Zhang Lu, female,14 years old, is the daughter of practitioners Zhang Lingjiang and Yu Jingxia from Shijiazhuang City, Hebei Province. At present, Yu Jingxia is detained at the second detention center. She was sentenced to 10 years in labor camp at her first trial and she is appealing to the Supreme Court of Hebei Province. Her husband Zhang Lingjiang was sentenced to 13 years in prison. He is now detained at the Hebei Province's first prison in Baoding. With no one left at home to take care of the young girl, Zhang Lu's aunt adopted her.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/10/22/53704p.html

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

74

### 19) 8-year-old Wang Juanjuan has to live with her 80 year-old grandmother, as her parents were in jail

Wang Juanjuan is an 8-year-old girl. She is a fourth grader in Hetan Team Elementary School, Jiaojiazhuang Township, Yongchang County, Gansu Province. She lives with her 80-year-old grandmother, and they have no resources with which to live.

Wang Juanjuan's father Wang Zexing, 40 years old, was sentenced to 10 years in prison in March 2001 for practicing Falun Gong. Her mother, Wang Yongfang, 37 years old, is also a Falun Gong practitioner. She was sentenced to a 6-year prison term in March 2001.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/10/23/53750p.html

#### 20) 17-year-old Zhang Tiezhu supports himself by growing crops

Seventeen-year-old Zhang Tiezhu lives in Jiaojiazhuang Township, Yongchang County, Gansu Province. He lives alone and supports himself by growing crops.

Zhang Tiezhu's parents are both Falun Dafa practitioners and have been sentenced to prison. His father, Zhang Tingrong, 45 years old, was sentenced to 12 years in prison in March 2001. His mother, Wang Zefang, 41 years old, was sentenced to 8 years in prison in March 2001.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/10/23/53750p.html

#### 21) Wei Wei lives with her grandmother as both parents were arrested

Wei Wei is a 19-year-old girl. She lives in Lanzhou City, Gansu Province with her grandmother.

Wei's father, Wei Anyue, is 44 years old. He is a resident of Jinchang City, Gansu Province. He is a former employee of the Transportation Department, Jinchuan Company. He was forced to retire early in 2001 (1) and became destitute and homeless in order to avoid being illegally arrested at home. He was arrested on December 7, 2003 in Lanzhou City, and his current whereabouts are unknown.

Wei's mother, He Binying, is 43 years old. She was arrested on December 7, 2003 in Lanzhou City. Her current situation is unknown.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/10/23/53750p.html

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

75

### 22) Kang Jiaqi, a junior high school student, was deprived of her education because her parents practice Falun Dafa

Kang Jiaqi, the daughter of Hengshui City Second Middle School teacher, Liu Hongluan (Falun Gong practitioner), of Hebei Province, used to go to the same school where her mother worked. Jiaqi's father, a Falun Gong practitioner, was detained at a brainwashing center, and her mother left her home in order to avoid being illegally arrested. So the school forced Jiaqi to withdraw from school, and deprived her of an education.

Related link: http://www.clearwisdom.net/emh/articles/2004/5/16/48161.html

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

### **Terms:**

- (1) "610 Office": a bureau specifically created by the Chinese governmet to persecute Falun Gong. It has absolute power over each level of administration in the Party, as well as over the political and judiciary branches.
- (2) Yuan: Chinese currency, the monthly salary fo an average Chinese urban worker is about 500 Yuan.

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

### Summary

During the past five years, those who practice Falun Gong and strive to be good people and follow the principles of "Truth, Compassion, and Tolerance" have experienced the cruelest form of torture under the persecution orchestrated by Jiang's regime. Many of them have even been tortured to death, resulting in the breakup of happy families, and in children having no parents to care for them. Statistics from Clearwisdom.net show that as of October 25, 2004, 1089 Falun Gong practitioners are confirmed as having been tortured to death. It is not difficult to imagine how many children are suffering from the loss of their parents. At the same time, numerous children are suffering hardships after their parents were imprisoned or sent to forced labor camps, went into exile to avoid arrest, were locked up in brainwashing centers or mental hospitals, or lost their jobs. Even more disturbing is the fact that young children are also under direct persecution by Jiang's regime because of their own Falun Gong practice or because their parents practice Falun Gong. Over the past five years, countless children have suffered discrimination, intimidation, illegal detention, beatings, homelessness, and some have even been tortured to death. The harm done to these children is beyond imagination.

The cases collected in this report are just a drop in the ocean in the five years of the persecution of Falun Gong practitioners. Though just a small fraction of cases, they can reflect the evilness of Jiang's regime. The Jiang regime's persecution of Falun Gong and its policy of eliminating Falun Gong don't even spare children! It openly violates Chinese law and international conventions, and takes away young people's rights of freedom of belief and their rights to receive an education.

How many children have been deprived of a happy childhood and family life during the persecution? How many family tragedies has this inhuman persecution created? At this time it is difficult for us to make an accurate determination. For the future of the children, the hopeful future of mankind, and for justice, the world's people must unite to put an end to this inhuman persecution. Let's work together to rescue these innocent children. They deserve to be helped, cared for, and respected by every kind-hearted person, government and the whole international community.

全球营救受迫害法轮功学员委员会 Global Mission to Rescue Persecuted Falun Gong Practitioners

78